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| BRITISH SISALKRAFT LTD., BARKING, ESSEX. phone DOM 6666
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There’s practically nothing to a barrier membrane seen this
way on, but it performs a vital function, e.g. windproofing—
protecting—reflecting—lining—flashing—cladding—water-
proofing—curing—insulating—screening—bond-breaking.

There's a grade of Sisalkraft to do each of these things. ..
and, in some cases, to do two, three, four or more of them.
Like Sisalation; a barrier against heat, cold, and moisture

vapour. Like Moistop ; a barrier against damp, impurities and
chemical contamination. And like Copper Armoured Sisal-
kraft; for flashing, dampproof coursing, waterproofing and
electro-static shielding.

To find out more about Sisalkraft papers,
get in touch with : British Sisalkraft Ltd.,
Barking, ESSEX. Tel: DOMinion 6666.

s1SACKRAFT
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™= MERRION CENTRE HI‘IIIISEHII!II

by the Arboglaze system — the glazing system that
- stays watertight under all exposure conditions.

Architects: Gillinson, Barnett and Partners  Quantity Surveyors: Trower and Partners Main Contractors: Sir Lindsay Parkinson & Co. Ltd
Glaziers: Cyril Isaacs & Co., Leeds Anodised aluminium sliding windows supplied and fixed by Heywood-Helliwell Ltd.

Heat Absorbing glass

Frame assembly Glazing

Arboglaze System

Frames rigidly jointed and —
sealed with Arbokol
Metai-lo-Metal Adhesive.

Arbroflex

Arboseal Butyl Rubber Grade

Note: Two sefting blocks al quar-
ter points to support boltom edge
of glass and locating block bhe-
tween frame and lop edge of glass
lo prevent movemen! of glass in
sliding window.

Joints between extruded cill members, mullion cover and
¢ill, and Irame and cill sealed with Arbokol Elastomer
Type L (Single Pack). Process repeated at head detail

In the Merrion Centre, Leeds, the Arboglaze system incorporated : Arbokol Metal-to-Metal Adhesive polysulphide rubber/resin based, lo
Arbomast B.R. high polymer adhesive sealant for joint caulking and provide a rigid bond with full accommodation of thermal and vibrational
weather sealing. movemenl! without fear of fracture or slumping.

Arbokol polysulphide rubber elastomer sealant Type L (Single Pack). Arproflex glazing compound-maintains a more durable and plastic
Arboseal B.R. high adhesion load bearing polythene and rubber based seal than linseed oil pulty.

preformed sealant.

For further details of the ARBOGLAZE system, write to the manufacturers.

ADSHEAB BA'C“FFE & co. l.Tn. BELPER DERBY Telephone Belper 2891 (3 lines)
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At ICI we believe we have one of the most underworked Complaints
Departments in the UK. It's not good luck, it's good labs —ICI is
pioneering in every new field of painting development, but testing is
so thorough that new paints are marketed only when we are certain
that your complaints will be as few as ours. If you are interested in all
types of modern surface coatings, you can specify ‘Dulux’ and other
paints from ICI with professional confidence. By the way, you mustn’t
get the idea that the spider in our illustration has an easy life—his whole
day’s work is wiped out nightly by the cleaners.

Youhave a name to five w o...
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Bill Browning

SIEEL
INIO
STONE

the strength of steel . . . the
beauty of stone combined to
delight the eye in any colour

FACT lightweight stone facing one tenth
the weight of thinnest slabs

fine matt texture

any colour shape or size as required

perfect weathering no maintenance
breakage free and incombustible

makes a frameless wall facing

minimum site labour—only 4 |bs per sq. ft.
with or without insulation

stoneclad steel

Matthews Refractories Limited 1a Sloane Court East London SW3 Sloane 0084
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“George
_Parnall,
i [ love

you!”

George Parnall can turn “just window
shopping” into a minor buying
spree. That's because George
Parnall knows the business of
complete store fittings. And backs it
with years of experience and a team
of designers and craftsmen to
& give you better, more efficient
¢ service. Whether you're thinking of
. exteriors or interior fittings for
stores, banks, or any type of public
buildings, have a word with
George Parnall.

George Parnall & Co Ltd

Craftsmen and designers

4 Bedford Square London WC1
MUSeum 7101
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PAMMASTIC|

emulsion paint

4-057 SPANISH GOLD

BLUNDELL. pERMOGLAZE LTD
Voo . e o baan - WO

Pammastic gives you an overall advantage

Pammastic Emulsion is based on a unique Acrylic
Ter-polymer medium for increased adhesion, flexibility,
opacity and weathering. It can be applied by brush,
spray or roller to any wall or ceiling surface without
primer or undercoat. Inside and outside, Pammastic
dries in an hour to a perfect matt finish. Pammastic has
been proved durable under severe atmospheric and
climatic conditions, and can be washed or scrubbed—

time and time again. Pammastic is available in a
complete range of exciting contemporary colours—
including the BS 2660 range plus white. So look out for
our new sign. And pick Pammastic, every time.

Pammastic is hased on a specsal grade of DUNLOP POLIMUL
PP One of the world-famous polyvinyl acetate co-polymer emulsions devel-
oped and rullufl(tl‘ ad by the Uunlo,] Chemical Products Division,

TH SIG N )F
300D |

PAMMASTIC R

BLUNDELL-PERMOGLAZE LTD., YORK HOUSE, 37 QUEEN SQUARE, LONDON WC1. MAKERS OF DECORATIVE, INDUSTRIAL, TRANSPORT AND MARINE FINISHES
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r Rd., Shepherds Bush, London W.12. Tel: SHEpherds Bush 2050

THE RANK ORGANISATION-RANK AUDIO VISUAL: Woodge
LEEDS 20507 + LIVERPOOL Central 8956 - MANCHESTER Blackfriars 1428 - NEWCASTLE 23038

Branches : BELFAST 27065 - BIRMINGHAM Central 5827 - GARDIFF 20261 - GLASEOW Central 1841




Not that Shanks need plugging,
but we thought we'd pop up and waste your time for a moment,
in an effort to illustrate how Shanks, whatever they turn their hand to,
be it basin, bath or bidet, produce with meticulous care and precision,
right down to the smallest detail.

kS

! | ol
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OPL’S sunbreakers

Zahim and Ghunaim Commercial Building, Kuwait
Anthony Irving, Dipl. Arch., FRIBA., FRSA., Design Construction Group

3,540 gold anodized sunbreakers sct against the natural anodized windows
with weatherstripped vents and heavy duty double hung sash

Crittall-Hope Export
HOPEIS WINDOWS HENRY HOPE & SONS LTD
The Name Guarantees Sk %ﬁiﬁﬁé I\s]fovhf

Send for Catalogue 374

38




'Take a test drive for two

If your ego’s in need of a boost, sit it be-
hind the wheel of the Alfa Romeo Sprint
GT. In no time at all, you'll be floating
along high and mighty. Find yourself a
twisty lane and the Sprint GT will hug
the bends and cling to curves close and
easy. Find yourself in thick traffic and it
will slip serenely all the way through.

For £1,899.17.2* tax paid, the Sprint GT

LONDON. THE HOME COUNTIES & EAST ANGLIA

Telephone Cobha

th Ho Bham 1¢

thing 977 WILTSHFHE&WEST OF ENGLAND

WALES | f Vot Ltd., Maridale Lane, W

Roa n 2z
NORTH ton Road,

; NOHTHERN IRELAND

olverhampton

2329 LANCASHIRE &CHESHlHE :

L‘ Ja or l r na
olm \

An'fa Romeo trained mechamcs w:'h every d:srnburor and dealer.

(You and your ego)

offers you a 1570cc 122 bhp twin carbur-
ettor engine, 5 forward gears, 4 secats
(deep contoured and reclining in the
front) disc brakes and all the style and
dash you could wish for.

If you insist on a touch more style and
dash, there’s the Sprint GTC—a drop
head coupe version for £1,998.18,10*,

( % Recommended retail pries )

n Ltd., 142 Holland Park

ng S ¥s

rmin Tele

irage, «

npleton, Broadway Averue, Ballyme

SUSSEX Et SOUTHERN COUNTIES K.N
) LINCOLNSHIRE&THE EAST MiDLANDSF K. Shary

Bradford SCOTLAND I‘ml anan of Gl

Test drive the Sprint GT or GTC. You
can arrange a long, fast, exhilarating test
drive in either or both, simply by getting
in touch with the distributor below
nearest to you, or one of his dealers.
Alfa Romeo (GB) Litd., 164 Sloane
Street, London S.W.1. BEL 7746-7-8

& ALFA ROMEO

homes lar
1 S I

1 (Engineers) Ltd., 41 rthing, Te |"|crm
STAFFORDSHIRE&NORTH
e Lid., 233 Newark
YORKSI“”RE AND THE

129 [ ilcarres. A dale, Glasgow W.2

cna 6654, CHANNEL ISLANDS Henry Linton Cars Ltd,
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.

moorlite |

LIGHTING EQUIPMENT

What puts the M.P.C. ahead of the i'est?

There's usually more to Moorlite lighting equipment than meets the eye.
Take the type M.P.C. for example; it's easy to see that it's an elegant
rimless prismatic diffuser carefully designed to intergrate with
modular ceilings and to reduce glare.

What you don't see and what makes it so outstandingly different,
are the quick-release clips, which, by means of an ingenious but
extremely simple action, ensure rapid easy removal of the fabricated
prismatic dish, and it's refixing with an instant positive grip.

Just one example of the many special features to be found in
Moorlite equipment.

The photograph above gives an indication
of the simplicity and size of the quick-release

clips. The line sketches (left) show how

effectively they grip. Simply press upwards

[ - | e _ to secure and pull down to release.
== - | )
| “_'('\t'\v"‘.\'v VAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANAAA

548 M Patent Application No. 36773 /65.

For further details write to the manufacturers at either of the addresses below :-

STAND NO. LL.11 E. J. Schofield & Co. Ltd.

Electrical Engineers

(A.S.E.E. Exhibition 1966) MOORLITE WORKS, OXFORD STREET, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE, LANCS TEL. ASHTON 2277/8'9
EARLS COURT LONDON OFFICE: YORK HOUSE, WESTMINSTER BRIDGE ROAD, S.E. TEL. WATERLOO 2672/3
40
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clear, smoke brown, red, blue and green glass shades.
ACOrn 2176 and 2664

Diameter of glass shades 6

Height
Projection from wall

V. 149—Wall brackets of polished brass—ava

Dimensions :—
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THE VITAL STATISTICS
OF THERMALON CAVITY
WALL INSULATION

costs 10- a square yard of nominal 2" cavity
saves an estimated T09% of conducted heat losses
pays for its initial cost in 3-4 years

You get startling results like these by gentle pressure
injection of Thermalon cavity wall insulation. Heat-
retaining, cost-cutting results that impress architects,
builders, heat engineers, house owners—everyone with
a vested interest in really efficient thermal insulation.
Results you can measure. Thermalon has been installed
in Old People’s Homes, Blocks of Flats, Public Houses
and Factories. Contracts have been completed for the
Admiralty, War Office, Air Ministry, United States Air
Force, United Kingdom Energy Authority and the Gas
and Electricity Boards as well as for many local authori-
ties. Write for a full list of Thermalon contracts.

“the extra warmth that costs you less”

THERMALON

the dependable name in cavity wall insulation

Thermalon Limited, 213-223 Lewisham Way, London, S.E.4. (TIDeway 6688)
A member of the Commercial Plastios Group of Companies Eﬁ

42
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From now on
you can call
mechanical
tints
Letratone

ﬁ’ that good.

* Heat resistant - takes dyeline printing.
* Only 3/9 a sheet.

* 100 patterns including 63 dot tints with 9 screen
rulings and 7 percentage values of each.

* Highest quality reproduction.

* Large print area-9” x 135",

* Holds at a touch - removes without picking.
* Bonds when burnished.

* Indefinite shelf-life.

* Scrapeable ink pattern.

* Takes Letraset and other art materials.

FREE OFFER -

Cut out this valuable voucher and take it
to one of the stockists listed opposite. He
will give you 1 sheet of Letraset Instant
Lettering (of your own choice) for every

4 sheets of Letratone purchased.

Offer lasts until April 30th.

Take advantage of it now.

NN
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Letratone Stockists

LONDON

E.C.

‘Wixon Supplies Co. Ltd.,
333 Goswell Road,
E.C.1.(TER 6587)
Conroy Services Ltd.,

99 Gr. Eastern Sireet,
E.C.2. (CLE 5603)

Thos, H, Nicol Ltd,,

172 Bishopsgate,

E.C.2. (AVE 5782)
Colyer & Southey Ltd.,
17-18 Tooks Court,
Cursitor St., E.C4. (HOL 6245)
Clifford Milburn Ltd.,,
54 Fleet Street,
E.CA4.(FLE 1688)

XL Drawing Office Ltd.,
3 Pilgrim Street,

E.C4. (CIT 2135)

w.

Cowling & Wilcox,

61 Broadwick Street,

W.l. (GER 9694)
Entwistle Thorpe & Co. Ltd.,
35 Maddox Street,

W.l. (MAY 0775)

Chas. F. Garner Ltd.,

6 Whitehorse Street,
W.l.(GRO 2262)

W. Johnson & Sons Ltd.,
187 Tottenham Court Road,
W.1.(MUS 2855)
Langford & Hill,

9 Warwick Street,

W.l. (GER 0086)

Pearce Plan Services Ltd.,
53 Blandford Street,

W.1. (WEL 5956)

George Pulman & Sons Ltd,,
24-27 Thayer Street,
W.1.(WEL 8261)

Times Drawing Office Ltd.,
& St, Georges Street,

W (MAY 7500)

Globe Book Co.,

14la Praed Street,

W.2. (PAD 7991)

Kays of Ealing Ltd.,

Bond Street,

W.5. (EAL 2813)

Hobby Horse,

387 King Street,

W.6. (RIV 8896)

Reeves,

178 Kensington High Street,
W.8. (WES 5370)

Charles & Co.,

45 Pembridge Road,

W.11. (PAR 6306)

Causer & Co.,

216 Goldhawk Road,

W.12. (SHE 2366)

W.C.
Clover Press,
66 Gr. Russell Street,
W.C.1. (HOL 909])
Entwistle Thorpe & Co. Ltd.,
86-88 Lambs Conduit Street,
W.C.l. (TER 8221)
Matthews Drew & Shelbourne,
78 High Holborn,
W.C.I1. (CHA 8788)
Phillip Poole Ltd.,
3 Vernon Place,
.Suufharr.‘prml Row,

1. (CHA 7706)
RL'I.‘".‘!.
13 Charing Cross Road,
W.C.2. (WHI 9940)

N.

J. Hodge Ltd.,

222 Holloway Road,
N.7. (NOR 4738)

N.W.

Church Army Press & Supplies,
185 Marylebone Road,
NW.I. (AMB 3211)
F. Hegner,

13 South End Road,
N.W.3. (HAM 0786)
Clifford Milburn Ltd.,
311 Finchley Road,
N.W.3. (HAM 6934)
Krisson Printing Ltd.,
184 Acton Lane,
N.W.10, (ELG 3333)

E.

Abbey Drawing Office Supplies
Ltd., 530 Forest Road,
E.l7.(COP 6353)

Vandy's, 633 Forest Road,
E.I7.(LAR 3492)

S.E.

Kenmar Young,

137 Westminster Bridge Road,
S.E.l. (WAT 4509)
Stricklands & Co.,
3-11 The Cur,

SE L, {H/ITI 23)
Matkins & Son,

19 Sangley Road,
S.E6. (HIT 3711)
John F. White Studios,
39 Rushey Green,
S.E6.(HIT 3111)

A. Booer & Sons,

The Arcade, High Street,

Eltham, 5.E.9. (ELT 2503)
“‘Morse’,

264 Lee ngfl Road,

S.E.13. (LEE 4183)

Chas. F. Thorn & Son Ltd.,

58-64 Wellington Street,
Woolwich, S.E.I8. (WOO 1248)

Geliot-Whitman Ltd.,

16a Herschell Road, Brockle 3

Rise, S.E.23. (FOR 9262)

S.W.

Lechertier Barbe Ltd.,

95 Jermyn Street,

S.W.I (WHI 2938)

Hall Harding Ltd.,

Stourton House, Dacre Street,
S.W.1. (ABB 7890)

Chelsen Art Stores,

314 Kings Road,

S.W.3. (FLA 0430)

F. J. Ward (Printshop) Ltd.,
130 Kings Road,

S. W3 (KEN 2390)

Screen Process Supplies Litd.,
24 Parsons Green Lane,
S.W.6, (REN 8§181)

Lamley & Co.,

1-5 Exhibition Road,
S.W.7.(KEN 1276)

REST OF U.K.
ALDRIDGE

York Engineering Design Co.,
Millington Plan Prints Ltd.,
Leighswood Road. (51166)

AYLESBURY
R. May & Son,
21 Walton Terrace. (5348)

BANGOR
Studio C,
338 High Street. (2107)

BASILDON
Recorder Office Equipment Co.,
83 Southern Way. (21282)

BASINGSTOKE

Wessex Service & Supply Co.,
Church Cottage House,
Church Square. (2910)

BATH
B. Charles Roff & Co, Ltd,,
1 Manvers Street. (2858)

BEDFORD

StanAd Ltd.,

Alexandra Road Corner,
Midland Ruud (68170)

F. Tollman & Co.,

82 & 85 Tavistock Street. (67009)

BELFAST
W. Erskine Mayne Ltd..
10 Donegall Square East. (31161)

BIRMINGHAM

Drawing Office Equipment Co.,
22 Temple Row,

Birmingham 2. (CEN 4635)
Everyman Stationery Co.,
266a-267 Broad Streer,
Birmingham 1. (MI1D 4789)
Midland Educational Co. Ltd.,
41 Corporation Street,
Birmingham 2. (MI1D 4815)
Hudson & Son (Printers) Ltd.,
Corner Edmund St. & Livery St.,
Birmingham 3. (CEN 3507)

B. Charles Roff & Co.,
248-250 Moseley Road,
Highgate, Birmingham 12,
(MID 3517)

Barrett Inter-Signs Co. Ltd.,
416 & 408 High Sireer,
Smethwick. (2551)

BOGNOR REGIS
ings Office Equi t
57 High Street. (620)

BOURNEMOUTH

T. J. Powell Ltd.,

103 Commercial Road. (20991])
Douglas Temple (Studios) Ltd.,
54 Old Christchurch Rd. (20533)

BRENTFORD
G. W. Garrett Ltd.
"4 Windmill Road. (/SL 4433)

BRIGHTON

Hall Harding Ltd.,

69 North Road. (64362)
Southern Designs Lid.,

106 Queens Road. (28274)
BRISTOL

Entwistle Thorpe & Co. Ltd.,

West India House,
Baldwin Street. (23467)

BROMLEY

Bromley Office Supplies,
39-41 East Street. (RAV 9811)

BURNLEY
J. R. Ainsworth Ltd.,
2 Standish Street, (2431)

BURY ST. EDMUNDS
East Anglian Art Shop,

2%a Abbeygate Street, (4664)
CAMBRIDGE

W. Hefler & Sons Ltd.,
18-19 Sidney Street, (58241)
CANTERBURY

E. W. Crump Ltd.,

6! Burgate. (62405)

CARDIFF

Copystat (Cardiff) Ltd,,

Repra House,

Park Lane. (30362)
Randall-Cox (Photographic),
18-22 High S1. Arcade. (31960)

CHELTENHAM
Archiprint Services Ltd,,
21 Promenade. (54775)
CHICHESTER

Reflex 1946 Lid.,

East Row,

Little London. (2564)

COLCHESTER

D. & K. Briggs,

15 Crouch Street, (4530)
COVENTRY

Midiand Educational Co. Ltd.,
1-5 Citv Arcade. (28618)

J. W. Smith (Coventry) Ltd.,
36 Queens Road. (26941)
Jonathan Smith,

5 Ford Street. (27186)

CRAWLEY

H. S. Ward,

2 Parkside. (25746)
GROYDON

W. G. Morley Ltd..

17 Drummond Road. (4919)

DERBY
David S. Butler Ltd.,
5 Iron Gate. (40571)

DORCHESTER

Frank Herring & Son,

27 High Street. (1149)
EDINBURGH

W. T. Henderson Ltd.,

2 Stafford Street. (CAL 6553)
P. Malloch & Son Ltd.,

52 Frederick Street. (CAL 4861)
EXETER

W. Chudley & Son Lid.,

11-15 Holloway Street. (55268)

FARNBOROUGH
Havwards Stores Ltd.,

T/A Easton, 4 Queens Mead.
(45696)

GLASGOW

McGavigans Ltd., 24 Roval
Exchange Square. (CEN 0268)
GLOUCESTER

John Jennings Ltd.,

‘Ciry' Works,

Brunswick Road.(22030)

H. E. Jones & Son Litd.,

73 Northgate Street. (22441)
GODALMING

A. E. J. Barton,

T/A Camera Craft,

10 High Street. (3113)
GUILDFORD

Guildford Photo Printers,
St. Mary's House,

Quarry Street, (2686)
HARLOW

Welcommes Art Supplies Ltd.,
16 The Rows. (25698)

HARROW

Syntagraphic Technical Pub. Ltd.,

24 Headstone Drive,
Wealdstone. (UN D 3440)
HASTINGS

Howard Swain,

194 Queens Road. (4368)
HORSHAM

Gough Brothers,

42 West Street. (3845)
HOUNSLOW

T. B. Andrews Ltd.,
52-54 Bath Road. (5411)
Technical Publications Ltd.,
Parklands Parade,

Bath Road, (4488)

HULL

Hull Drawing Materials,

7-8 Carr Lane. (24263)
ILFORD

Owen Clark & Co. Ltd.,

66 Cranbrook Read. (0324)
IPSWICH

East Anglian Art Shop,

8 Gt Colman Street. (58429)
KETTERING

L. J. Wright (Kettering) Ltd.,
22b Wadcroft. (4535)

KING’S LANGLEY

W. G. Kingham (Printers) Ltd.,
14 High Street. (2333)
KINGSTON-UPON-THAMES
E. B. Clarke Ltd.,

29 Eden Street. (0827)
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LEAMINGTON SPA
A. S, Blackie,
117 Regent Street. (21719)

LEEDS

James Dinsdale Ltd.,

63a Woodhouse Lane. (36312)
Graphic Group Ltd.,

Graphic House,

Armiley Road,

Leeds 12. (637387)

LEICESTER

Drawing Office Requisites,
11 Marble Street, (26417)
W. Frank Gadsby Ltd.,
22 Market Place, (22410)
LETCHWORTH

F. Green (Stationer) Ltd.,
The Arcade. (3170)
LIVERPOOL

Appleton & Lomax Ltd,,
Block B, The Temple,
Dale Street. (CEN 8689)
Douglass & Walls,

14 Tithebarn Street. (CEN 3143)

LUTON

Bayliss Wright & Co.,

12 Barbers Lane. (22186)
Terry-More Ltd.,

c/o Lye & Sons Ltd.,

130 New Bedford Road. (23393)
MAIDENHEAD

E. C. Marshall,

18 Queen Street. (27783)
MAIDSTONE

Vivish & Baker Ltd..

28 King Street. (2980)
MANCHESTER

Colyer & Southey,

239 Deansgate. (BLA 2]42)
Entwistle Thorpe & Co. Ltd.,
27-31 King Street West,
(BLA 5704)

Walkers Showeards Ltd.,
Imperial House, Lirtle
Newton Street, Manchester 4.
(CEN 8213)

B. Wilson & Son,

111 Oxford Road. (AR D 2000)
NEWCASTLE

Van Der Velde Ltd.,

60-67 Pilgrim Street. (61013)

NORTHAMPTON

R. 8. Savage & Sons,

99-105 Ketrering Road. (37883)
NORWICH

W. Burroughs & Co.,
70 Ber Street, (20880)

NOTTINGHAM

John E, Wright & Co. Ltd.,
Blueprint House,

115 Huntingdon Street. (52261)

NUNEATON

The Gallery,

The Green,

Attleborough, (5428)
OXFORD

Art & Stationery Co. Ltd.,
18 Broad Street. (41861)

PETERBOROUGH

Central Office Equipment Ltd.,
Cowgate. (3201)

PINNER

Reid, Musgrove & Co. Ltd.,
68-72 Pinner Green. (3900)

PLYMOUTH
Underhill (Plymouth) Ltd.,
101 Tavistock Road. (60094)

POOLE
A.D.O.S.,
4’ Towngate Street. (2045)

PORTSMOUTH

Salters Commercial Stationers,
248-250 Havant Road,
Dravton. (Cosham 76182)
Jonathan Smith,

271a London Road. (61795)
PRESTON

The Guildhall Trueprint Ltd.,
14 Guildhall Street. (55654)
READING

Reading Fine Art Gallery,

21 Cross Street. (54140)
Sargents Embrook Litd.,

119 London Road. (54332)

REIGATE

Reigate Drawing Office &
Equipment Ltd.,

Bancroft Road. (45755)
ROCHESTER

G. Summers & Co.

382-392 High 'Ju-u-.' (FOO 6699)
RUGBY

George Over Litd.,

21 Market Place. (5151)
ST. ALBANS
V.A.D.O.S. Lud.,

51 Spencer Nrur (56897)
SEVENOAKS

Jomat,
118 London Road. (55320)

— e A e —————— R e SR

SHEFFIELD
A. Pinder Ltd.,
175 Norfotk Street, (27574)

SHENFIELD

Hussey & Greaves Ltd.,
94 Hurton Road.
(Ingrebourne 40081)

SHREWSBURY
Shropshire Employment Agency,
35 Wyle Cop. (51315)

SLOUGH

Slough Photo Printing,
Salt Hill. (22669)

SOUTHALL
A. Marshall,
56 The Crescent. (2743)

SOUTHAMPTON
Archiprint Service Ltd.,
214 Shirley Road. (27591)
SOUTHEND

Laurence Mathews,
29 Victoria Arcade. (65160)

STOCKPORT

Turners, 9/a Wellington
Road South. (2672)

STOKE-ON-TRENT

J. G. Fenn Ltd.,

5 Glebe Street. (47136)
Webberley Ltd.,

Percy Street & Tontine Street,
Hanley. (25256)

SUNBURY-ON-THAMES

Paxton Bros. Lud.,
97 Staines Road West, (4201)

SUTTON

Sutton Stationers,

298 High Street. (VIG 5385)
The Commercial Photo Co.,

3 Oldfields Parade. (FAI 3788)

SWANSEA

Photo Supplies Ltd.
6 St. Helen's Road., (5‘46[7)

SWINDON
Wessex Drawing Office Supplies,
1 Prospect Hill. (6318)

TONBRIDGE
H. S. Featherstone Ltd..
173 High Street. (3085)

TUNBRIDGE WELLS
Camera Hobbies,
Camden Studios,

33/35 Camden Road.
(2347.3)

TWICKENHAM

Brangwyn-Maurice Studios Ltd.,
62 York Street.(POP7211)

UXBRIDGE

A. M. Archer & Co. Ltd.,

134 Wellington Streer. (20202)
Perry & Routleff Ltd.,

268 High Street.(25541)

A. Boville Wright,

128 High Street. (33549)

WARE
Wand Bros.,
1 West Street. (3184)

WATFORD

Davis & Kays Ltd.,

22 Woodlands Parade,
High Street. (26602)
Ryman (Counties) Ltd.,
80 High Street. (21974)

WELLING

Technical Office &

Photocopy Supplies,

105 Beligrove Road. (BEX 8800)

WELWYN GARDEN CITY
Creaseys of Hertford Ltd.,
34 Stonehills. (26386)

WEMBLEY
Wiles (Wembley) Ltd.,
218 Ealing Road. ( DIL 0966)

WIIGHESTER
P. Selfe & Co.,
JJeweryé.'rrt'l‘ (4924)

WINDSOR

Luff & Sons Ltd.,

47 8t, Leonards Romi (66366)
Windsor Art Shop,

L. R, Budd

50 Thames Srreer (64840)

WOKING

W. A, Elton Ltd.,

Chobham Road. (63575)
WOLVERHAMPTON
Barclays Business Supplies,
22 Broad Street, (23824)
WORCESTER

A. O, Jones & Co. Ltd.,
2-4 Triniry Street. (25115)
WORTHING

Coes SouthernLtd.,
Mulberry Building,
Mulberry Lane.(44841)
YEOVIL

Universal Drawing Services,
22 Princes Street. (214)
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Bolding's Service means more than a wide choice of
sanitary fittings. It provides architects with the greatest
freedom in all aspects of design and specification. It
is also useful to bear in mind that however standard
or specialised your requirements, this service is always
flexible enough to meet them.

PIod

BOLDING'S — THE COMPLETE SERVICE TO ARCHITECTS

¥

sBul

John Bolding & Sons Limited, 58 Davies Street, London, W1




Bill Browning

Built-in colour anodising is the finish
of the future. Permanent colours by
Alcanodox* and Kalcolort offer a
range from gold, amber and black.
Please write or telephone for colour
brochures on these processes and

our technical literature on architectural
anodising in all its aspects.

Specify Acorn Anodising for all

your projects.

*Alcanodox is being registered as Trade Mark of Alcan Industries Limited.
+Proprietary name of Kaiser Aluminium & Chemical Corporation.

ited

Acorn Anodising Company Li

‘ l Cambndge Yard Hanwell London W7 Telephone EALing 7744




The Architectural Review March 1966

Fire is a permanent danger.
Sprinkler systems, concrete
structures and fireproof paints
all help but are not enough. The
first and most important step
to minimising fire damage is an
efficient and up-to-date fire
alarm system which gives early
and ample warning.

| would like your representa-
tive to call.
Please send details of STC

Fire Alarm systems.
Delete as appropriate

STC supplies and installs
appropriately simple or complex
systems including the latest and
most advanced automatic
devices for detection of
combustion processes.

So much is at stake. Minimise
fire damage by getting in touch
with our special advisory service

NAME

POSITION
COMPANY
ADDRESS

Are your projects fireproof?

at the address below —we are
fully equipped to solve your
problem quickly and effectively.
Equipment available for sale or rent.
Standard Telephones and Cables
Limited, Private Communications
Division,Footscray, Sidcup, Kent.
Telephone: FOOtscray 7788.
Telex: 21836.

private communications

46




ya
r'd
V.
/
Y.
7
A y.
V4 X
<R
/
x o
/
X
i Robinson & P.nners
You just
can’t lose
'LARK & EATON LTD
See page 120

E GREAT SUFFOLK STREET LONDON SE1

8010

Bognor Regis Chichester Gosport Southend-on-Sea Chelmsford
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A new vinyl tile by Nairn-Williamson. New colours. New Continental
decoration. Suitable for suspended and direct-to-earth floors.

Nairnflex Vinyl Tiles, manufactured to
B.S. 3260: 1960, present a new range of
colours with a delicately striated Continental
decoration. The tiles can be laid on direct-to-
earth floors without a D.P.C. A Nairnflex floor
is durable, unworried by most chemicals in
general use and easy to maintain. Nairnflex
Vinyl Tiles are suitable for domestic use and
for offices, shops, schools, hospitals and
similar heavy duty applications. There is a
balanced range of 22 B.S. colours available

in 20 mm. 9" tiles and 3.2 mm. 9” and 12"
tiles. For further information, please write to
Nairn-Williamson Ltd. and ask for Technical
Information Sheet No. N-W 17.

Other floorings by Nairn-Williamson are

Crestaline, Crestalux, Armourtile, Armourflor,
Melomarble, Vinyl Asbestos Tiles.

NAIRN-WILLIAMSON LTD

Kirkcaldy, Fife, Scotland, Telephone: Kirkcaldy 2011

floors

Cresta
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- SPLENDOOR by MODERNFOLD. Here is an ideal way to meet modern problems of space division. Manufactured
[ in 43" panels of extruded -056 aluminium. Tough vinyl locked into the metal is used to hinge all panels which
~ are finished in elegant looking Anodised silver, gold or bronze. Single dividers can be made to a maximum width
- of 60" 0" x 15" 0" high. Splendoor space dividers are made to measure and require no floor track. Completely
B flexible they can be recess stacked — made to meet each other, or curved and supplied with or without a matching
~ | cornice. Without a doubt we suggest you investigate this brilliant member of the Modernfold range.

1:‘:1

'_0

'-i modernfold
~ WRITEFORFULLDETAILSTO:-HOME FITTINGS (Gt. Britain) LIMITED
b

DEPT. AR26 BRIDGE WORKS, WODEN ROAD SOUTH, WEDNESBURY, STAFFS. TEL: WEDNESBURY 0761 [ ov o T comrens |
B ALSO MANUFACTURERS OF THE BROCKHOUSE MONO-CONTROL AND SUN-AIRE VENETIAN BLINDS
i
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:TORONTO CITY HALL

civic centre ‘shuts out the city around
it,)” 2. The new square, 4, is strewn
with flower pots and benches in an
attempt to generate interest.

On the credit side, apart from the

initial coup, is the way in which the
old City Hall, 3, is brought into the
group by the deceptively simple con-
crete arches spanning the pool. There
is no doubt that the blank walls of the
office blocks are superbly finished, 6,
the precast pancls being inset with
strips of split-faced Botticino marble.

G

Too much detail, however, is either
stark or whimsical, 7. The ramp to the
podium concourse, 8, has an impres-
sive breadth of scale, and this is main-
tained in the Hall of Memory, 10,
which surrounds the cup-shaped coun-
cil chamber. The chamber itself, 9, is
cool rather than noble, and it reads
better in plan, 11, or section, 12.

The boomerang-shaped towers,
326 ft. and 260 fi., have a curious
layout : the typists in open offices enjoy
the exciting variety of views across the
podium (except on the lowest two or
three floors where the council chamber
dome is in the way), whereas the
prestige private offices are mainly
placed against the windowless back
walls. The City Council ‘didn’t
think that the 10 per cent the architect
asked for looking after the furnishing
was justified,” so Knoll got the job
(13 shows the Mayor’s office).

13

BAUHAUS
REBORN

The battered remnant seen above, 14,

is hardly recognizable as part of
Gropius’s Bauhaus, Damaged in the
last war, neglected under Stalinism and
patched up shabbily with brick in
place of glass, the school is now at last
to be rehabilitated. A grant of £90,000
(about a quarter of what may be
needed) has been approved by the East
German Ministry of Culture, which
has declared the Bauhaus a national
monument and has called on former
students to ensure authenticity In
colour and furnishings. The buildings
will continue to be occupied by three
trade schools and a nurses’ training
college, to which will be added
archives, and a museum of artefacts,

ACADEMIC

In American university architecture an
air-conditioned core surrounded by a
‘racetrack” of corridors has become a
major architectural form, with par-
ticular problems in expressing both the
importance of the centre and the
irregularity of peripheral spaces.

In his women's dormitory for Bryn
Mawr College, 15, set in wooded park-
land, Louis Kahn has, according to

RATRACE

Forum, ‘suggested more the refinement
of a Renaissance chateau than the
ruggedness of a Medieval fortress.’
Kahn himself says, ‘I took only one idea
from the castle. It showed me that,
living space at the core of the building
can be made livable.” This core con-
sists of three halls (living, dining and
entrance), 16, round which two inter-
locking types of room are wrapped
diamond-wise in a fretwork of pro-
jecting bays, crenellated parapets and
turreted rooflights. In the cladding of
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The two great competitions of the
‘fifties were both held in the Common-
wealth, both judged by Eero Saarinen
and both won by Scandinavians. Both
winning designs were supremely evoca-
tive as models, but whereas Utzon's
Sydney (see frontispiece, page 174) has
been heaved with medieval effort into
architecture of almost medieval
mystery, the late Viljo Revell’s Toronto
City Hall has remained a model, cut
and dried, saying one thing only.
This thing, 1, is the setting of the city
council chamber, embraced by two
giant curved office blocks and perched
on a parking podium at one end of the
new city square. Revell called it an
‘eye,” with the chamber as pupil—but
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This month’s cover continues the riview's

series of cover designs based on lts own initials

with the help of two of the plates from a volume
of engravings entitled Architectonisches Alpha-

beth & Johann David Steingruber, published at
Schwabach in 1773, (By courtesy of the Metro-

politan Museum of Art, New York.)
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Large or small seating problems
beautlfully solved vy e ErcoLion A

“My full range of Ercol Windsor chairs is suited to a wide diversity of needs. Their
English Windsor antecedents are unimpeachable. For example the Quaker chairs
illustrated with their graceful tall dome-back have been developed by Ercol
from the Classic Windsor theme. All Ercol chairs are in a class of their own for
individuality of design and honesty of materials. Their construction is pure solid
wood geometry, aesthetically applied. Their comfortably broad seats, adzed from
solid elm, are made even more luxurious with foam filled pallet cushions firmly
held by straps and press studs. The gay coloured covers detach for dry cleaning to
stay fresh through heavy use. Ercol Windsor chairs are the most pleasing and
economical chairs of learning vou can obtain. Write for the full colour Ercol
catalogue which shows the complete range of chairs and other furniture.”

ERCOL FURNITURE LTD * HIGH WYCOMBE ° BUCKS
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Made to measure
solution to tricky
tiling problems

Busy architects and builders can solve any tiling problem
they have in only five minutes! That’s all the time it takes to
dictate a letter to Building Adhesives explaining the problem.
No ceramic tiling problem is too simple or too complicated
for Building Adhesives’ Technical Advisory Service. If it
is impossible to fix ceramic tiles in a particular situation—
though this is a very rare occurrence these days—Building
Adhesives will tell you so.

In 1965 Building Adhesives’ Technical Advisory
Service answered several thousand enquiries on tile
fixing from architects, surveyors, tile fixers and many
others. Where necessary Building Adhesives sent
one of their men personally to the site to investigate.

52

The result ? Lots of satisfied clients, lots of successful tiling.
Building Adhesives welcome enquiries from anyone involved
in specifying or fixing ceramic tiles. Advice is given freely,
and every effort is made to ensure that it is in the best
interests of the customer, Building Adhesives Limited is
sponsored by the British Ceramic Tile Council specifically for
this purpose. It’s in their interest (and yours!) to ensure that
ceramic tiles are always fixed properly and permanently.
There need never be a failure. So before another
tile is fixed take Building Adhesives’ free advice;
and dictate that letter to them now!

BUILDING ADHESIVES LIMITED FEDERATION HOUSE
STOKE-ON-TRENT Tel: STOKE-ON-TRENT 47244




RACETRACK
PLANNING

riven slate, 17, Kahn seems to be
aiming, like Lutyens, at texture at the
expense of architecture.

There is much simpler and more
satisfying monumentality, with fascin-
ating modulations of scale, at Kahn's
Salk Institute of Biological Research,
18, whose two parallel laboratory
buildings face the Pacific at La Jolla,
California. They are flanked towards
the central garden by scientists’
studies, 19, with triangular bays
canted forward to catch the ocean
breezes, compensating for the controlled
environment within the laboratories.
In contrast to the grand but pointless
cores of Bryn Mawr, 20, the labora-
tories of Salk, 21, form single working
spaces of 245 ft. by 65 ft. Above the
11 ft. ceilings are service spaces no
less than 9 ft. deep, allowing work
benches to plug in almost anywhere.
A whole storey is below ground, so the
remainder must be one of the tallest
two-storey buildings in existence. On
the outer side is a giant procession of
service towers, 24, superbly finished in
boarded concrete with lead-filled bolt
holes. Towards the sea, 22, the admin-
istrative offices, teak-faced like the
studies, have an ugly joint with the
nearest service tower. There is no such
clash at the landward end, 23, where
the mechanical plant continues the
mighty scale.

While Kahn believes in articulating
separate elements, most Americans
subordinate the parts to a formal
whole. The ‘Palladian racetrack’
appears most shamelessly at Minoru
Yamasaki’'s Woodrow Wilson School
of Public and International Affairs at

23

Princeton, 25. The giant order of
lecture hall and library supports an
attic storey, 26, of offices round roof
courts and lounges. At its purest the
classical formula is used by Mies van
der Rohein the School of Social Service
Administration on Midway Plaisance
for Chicago University. Half sunk in
the ground and flat in roofline (much
quieter than Crown Hall), 27, the
facade reflects the split-level arrange-
ment within of halls below ground and
offices on the first floor periphery, 28.
Unfortunately, the periphery was not
enough, so many of the sociologists
work in the windowless core.

John M. Johansen’s Goddard
Library on the Clark University cam-

sEconp rioee 28

pus will be by contrast a romantic
racetrack, 29; it will be a focal point
on TAC's master plan, with existing
Gothic buildings around it. The great
rectangular reading space, 30, will be
suppressed beneath frantically per-
sonalized offices and carrels.

Less monumental than any of these,
almost a racetrack vernacular, is St.
Joseph's College for 40 priests at
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Aigen near Salzburg, Designed by
Arbeitsgruppe 4 (Holzbauer, Kurrent
and Spalt), it was illustrated in Bauen
+ Wohnen's recent Austrian number.
The central rooflit chapel, 31, with an
apsidal auditorium, forms a focus for
the modular structure of red-painted
steel, with its oversailing roof girders
exposed, 32. The same architects show

31
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ARBEITSGRUPPE 4

another interesting use of structure, as
expressive as the Latin examples else-
where on this page, in their church
centre for Steyr-Ennsleiten, 33. This is
the exact opposite to the racetrack:
four separate elements are placed apart
on a paved surface, consisting of
church hall (left), parsonage (right),
church as yet unbuilt (centre) and
kindergarten (behind the church). The
tapering of the beams gives an odd
optical wiggle to the wall surfaces.

L aan B ALY b B

QUAKEPROOF

In areas affected by earthquakes, it is
hard for the architect to move away
from heavy columns and cross walls
of narrow span. At Mendoza Univer-
sity in the Argentine, however, Enrico
Tedeschi has achieved a distinctively
personal kind of carpentry, 34, in the
Faculty of Architecture. The pre-
stressed columns, yellow-green in
colour, were made at the local SCAC
factory, and the reinforcing bars were
electrically welded at each joint to
make the network homogeneous, 35,
Wide studio spaces and flexible par-
titioning, 36, were ensured by the
bracing of three massive cross walls,

UIGKER BY TUBE

The dramatic scale of air travel has
been associated since Saarinen with
curving ‘wings’ of poured concrete, the
natural flatness of formwork struggling
to express the supposedly limitless
agility of the material. Just as dramatic,
and certainly quicker to build or
extend, is the ‘fuselage’ solution of
Julio Lafuente in his hangar at Athens,
designed for the Onassis-owned
Olympic Airways. Four vast elliptical
tubes, 37, either of steel or of concrete,
will be supported on reinforced con-
crete gable walls, 38, the total span of
just over 500 ft. being sufficient to

clear three Boeings or four Comets, 39.

MINI BORROMINI

Luigi Moretti's palazzina on the Monte
Mario at Rome, 41, relates the present
sculptural tendencies in architecture

directly, if not crudely, to the renewed
interest of historians in the Roman
Baroque. A rectilinear layout of flats
bursts out in cantilevered balconies,
whose arcs never overlap, 40. Moretti
compares this to Borromini’s San Ivo,
where the internal spaces throw out
‘an explosion held back in its final
shape by the adverse forces of the
world." Sliding windows open on to
the balconies, which are intended to
trail with vegetation.
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.. .for a smoke

When next you pause to Iight up, remember
Player’s take their time from Gent electric elocks

INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL TIMEKEEPING

Hlustrated literature describing the full range of
Gent timekeeping equipment on request.
GENT & CO LIMITED-FARADAY WORKS- LEICESTER

London Office and Showrocom: 47 Victoria Street, S.W.1
Also at: BIRMINGHAM - BRISTOL * GLASGOW ' NEWCASTLE * BELFAST
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Each year Bostik’s sealant experts
drive a quarter of a million miles to
give FREE advice to architects

and contractors like you.

AP,
w

Unless you’re in a hurry. Then we fly.

Got sealant problems ? If so, Leicester 50015 is the number to
ring. That's the Building Division of Bostik. You simply tell us
your problem and your address. And we have our team of
sealant experts on your site in no time.

Putting in a low bid ? Then by all means, ring us. Our team
can sniff trouble, steer you clear of problems, introduce you to
time-and-money-saving techniques. Otherwise, ring us during
or after a contract. Remember, our service is free. You have
everything to gain.

[ ]
Bostilc sosi«m - uiverscrorr roap - LeicesTer

‘Barbour Index File No. 9°

54




‘marginalia |

BARNSBURY TRIUMPH

The Minister of Housing’s recent
decision on the Barnsbury planning
inquiry is a striking success for local
initiative. As previously reported
(AR, September, 1965), an apparently
conventional inquiry into a Greater
London Council proposal for piece-
meal housing development on a
three-acre site was turned into a public
forum for full-scale alternative pro-
posals, prepared by David Wager
for the Barnsbury Association, which
envisaged a comprehensive ‘environ-
mental area’ on Buchanan lines for
this attractive Early Victorian district,
The Minister has cleverly satisfied
both sides: he is giving the GLC the
permission for which they asked, but
‘in doing so he asks that the council
will not start on redevelopment until
they have let him see proposals for the
whole district. The field of environ-
mental management and standards is
one in which further study is urgently
necessary and it seems to the Minister
that Barnsbury would be a suitable
area for a pilot scheme. He proposes
to invite the GLC and the Islington
Borough Council to co-operate with
his department in studying how best
to create in Barnsbury an environ-
mental area from which through
traffic might largely be diverted.
The Association will be consulted in
the course of this study.’

It seems then that Mr. Crossman is
prepared to carry through Buchanan's
ideas into actual practice where his
former colleague at Transport, Mr.
Fraser, was not. It must be hoped
that the new Transport Minister will
keep herself closely in touch with the
Barnsbury initiative, and that the
results of the study will be made
fully available to all local authorities.

PAXTON: WHOLE OR DIVIDED?

The Arts Council’s centenary exhibi-
tion on Sir Joseph Paxton made appro-
priate halts at Birkenhead and Derby
before coming to London for a month,
Organized by Dr. G. F. Chadwick
with the same meticulousness as his
book on The Works of Sir Joseph
Paxton (published by the Architectural
Press in 1962), the exhibition inevitably
had few further ‘discoveries’ to excite
readers of the book or of Dr. Chad-
wick's earlier AR article (February,
1961). But by its wide conspectus it
provided visually the fuel for some
interesting controversy: was Paxton’s
importance, as Dr. Chadwick wrote
in the well-produced catalogue, ‘his
ability to encompass a very broad

field, and to do all within that field
remarkably well,” or was he just a
genius in glass who floundered in the
conventional media of brick and
stone?

Against Paxton as universal man
stands the obviously gimcrack quality
of many of the lodges and villas
illustrated in the exhibition, which
were turned out by his architectural
assistants such as John Robertson and
G. H. Stokes; in his favour as uni-
versal Victorian stands the appro-
priateness of these diverse buildings to
their diverse functions, set within the
all-embracing landscape which was his
first pride. The controversy over
eclecticism exercised many of Paxton’s
younger contemporaries, with their
secarch for a synthetic ‘Victorian style’
—but perhaps Paxton’s ‘style for the
job’ can be appreciated more easily
now than it was in the fervour of
International Modern a generation
ago, when only the Crystal Palace was
thought appropriate to its age and
ours.

CITY MILLS, PERTH

Destruction by neglect is a familiar
method of getting rid of unwanted
buildings which inconveniently happen
to be “listed.” Allow wind and weather
to get in and eventually the building
can be declared a dangerous structure
and be demolished.

The City Mills at Perth, 1, owned
by the council, seem to be in danger
of just such a fate, even though this
unique eighteenth-century group is

listed under the provisions of the
Town and Country Planning (Scot-
land) Act of 1947 in the highest classi-
fication of buildings of special historic
and architectural interest. The slated
roofs and stone walls are still in good
order but lack of interior maintenance
is causing deterioration of the timber
columns and floors, a process speeded
up by moisture penetration through
several sashless windows.

Grouped in a cobbled court around
the Town Lade the three-storey build-
ings, with machinery still intact, were
in operation as mills until some seven
or eight years ago. Now they are partly
used as a grain store and part disused.

The Upper Mill, of three-storey
rubble walling, is U-shaped in plan.
The south part has a notable, possibly
unique, king-post roof, 2, constructed
with radial struts, and is reminiscent
of shipwrights® construction methods.
Two undershot water wheels with
timber transmission columns supply
power to all floors, and the gearboxes
and millstones are intact. The west
part dates from 1774, and the south
and east parts were complete by 1792.

The Lower Mill, in which the ma-
chinery and 16 ft. diameter water wheel
are in particularly good condition, dates
in its present form, from 1805 to 1808,
probably incorporating earlier parts.

On paper this unique group, which
so neatly frames the spire of St. Paul's
church, 3, is preserved through being
listed. But local opinion seems to be
that the council’s present plans for
redeveloping the surrounding area

1, the City Mills at Perth, which are threatened by demolition. 2, king-post roof in the Upper Mill.

3, the Mills with S1. Paul's church bevond.

4

envisage their demolition; hence the
neglect. This would be a pity, for
with Perth priding itself on being the
Gateway to the Highlands and
attracting thousands of tourists each
vear, the Mills, which are conveniently
situated in the central area, could well
take on a new lease of life. For
instance they would convert into a
most attractive craft centre and

industrial museum. But action is
necessary now while they are still in
reasonable repair. K.B.
PROPAGATING MORRIS

The William Morris Society, which
celebrated ten years of work at a
meeting on December 7 at the Central
School of Arts and Crafts, has much
to show for its existence, in two
directions in particular: in making
itself a central point of reference for
inquiries about Morris (the indefatig-
able secretary, R. C. H. Briggs, being
the far from faceless ‘spokesman’)
and in publishing lectures, a journal
and other pamphlets about Morris in
forms of appropriately high quality.
Members now have a sizable shelf full
of such literature. For the future the
society has much to undertake,
besides conventional evangelism and
recruitment : scholarly re-appraisal by
visits and lectures of the frequently
inaccessible work of the Morris
Movement (not just Morris—he would
have been the first to recommend
others of the Movement); re-publica-
tion of the many important literary
and political works now out of print
(Longman’s stock was destroyed in
the blitz); and, last but not least, the
reconsideration of Morris's relevance
to the present day. His ideas, fre-
quently misunderstood, have possibly
suffered from too easy acceptance by
the immediate post-war generation of
architects and historians.

By appropriate coincidence, one of
the handsomest of all visual evocations
of Morris has recently been published,
in the September issue of the Swiss
magazine Du Atlantis. 1t includes
articles by the editors, Martin Hiir-
limann and Willy Rotzler, and reprints
from Sir Kenneth Clark and Barbara
Morris. Its importance, however, lies
in the superb full-page illustrations,
exceptionally well chosen and in-
cluding work by Mackintosh and
Voysey as well as cartoons by Burne-
Jones and Walter Crane, William
Morris Society members can obtain it
from the Secretary, 25 Lawn Crescent,
Kew, Surrey; others can apply to
Barmerlea Book Sales Ltd., 10 Bayley
Street, London, WCl,

ARCHITECTURE EAST MIDLANDS
It is surely a healthy sign that a number
of new regional architectural journals
escape from parochial, village pump
gossip and show an active dissatis-
faction with the way things are
going. The latest, Architecture East
Midlands,* is frankly based on its
lively forerunner Northern Architect.
It is none the worse for that, and con-
tents and presentation (typography by
Trevor Burt) have so far maintained
a very high standard indeed. The aim,
according to the editor, Robert Cullen,
is to avoid the usual *pat on the back’
type of magazine and to illustrate only

* Sponsored by the Nottingham, Derby and
Lincoln and the Leicester and Rutland societies
of architects.
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good work ; not to attempt to compete
with the national magazines but to
concentrate on regional problems.

Architecture East Midlands is seen
as a propaganda instrument to stimu-
late the demand for better buildings
and planning in its region. The region
certainly needs it, for D, H. Lawrence’s
description of the Nottingham area
as ‘a great scabble of ugly pettiness
over the face of the land’ is still pretty
near the mark. In the issues so far
published punches have not been
pulled. There seems to be a real
searching for standards here and never
mind whose vanity gets hurt.

The first issue contained an open
letter to the town clerk of Nottingham,
copies of which readers were invited
to sign, demanding a proper plan for
the city and a high quality staff to go
with it. The present planning methods,
which ring familiar, are summed
up as follows. ‘Planning by stealth
is the declared policy of the city en-
gineer; don’t tell anybody you have
a plan, work the proposals through
the committees in bits and pieces
and Bingo—in five or ten years time

Nottingham will have a complete
inner ring road.” Other subjects
tackled include a revaluation of

CLASP (on home ground here),
the Smigielski plan for Leicester and
town studies of Lincoln and Gran-
tham. The latter show once again the
dire results of a failure by architects
and planners to appreciate the context
in which they are building.

The latest issue, No. 5, deals
exclusively with the village, first tracing
diagrammatically the evolution of
human settlements, then presenting
portraits of various villages in the
region. Their origins and characteristics
are described and also the particular
threats and problems they face today.

SCOTT’S OTHER ALBERT

The accompanying photographs fur-
nish an unexpected footnote to Peter
Ferriday’s centenary celebration of Sir
Gilbert Scott’s Albert Memorial (AR,
June, 1964). Last year was the cen-
tenary of Scott’s other Albert Me-
morial, 4—the little-known gravestone
in Petersham churchyard, Surrey,
to his own third son, Albert Henry,
who died in 1865 aged 21 as an under-
graduate of Exeter College, where his
father had designed so splendid a

_

chapel. The Scotts were then living in
a Georgian house at Ham nearby.
Perhaps if Albert Henry had survived,
he would have become an architect
like his two brothers, George Gilbert
and John Oldrid.

The grave, 4, lies in a secluded
corner, not far from the delightful
Georgian church, 5 (which Scott
cannot have liked), and next to the
much-visited grave of Capt. George
Vancouver, It is a hefty chunk of
greenish granite, excellently lettered
and with incised tendrils ornamented
on the sides and on the top, where
there is a foliated cross. There are
globules of semi-precious stone at
points of emphasis. N.T.

DO-IT-YOURSELF PLAYGROUND
The impromptu children’s playground
at Notting Hill Gate, illustrated in the
July, 1965, AR under the above title,
has now been given a permanent site.
This is at the corner of Telford Road
and Worthington Road, just off
Portobello Road, Notting Hill, and
contains, besides the adventure play
area on the lines already illustrated
(and shown on the left in 6), a
pavilion (centre of picture), an ‘under
fives’ area (right) and a ball-game
area (background). The architects are
Michell and Partners.

The pavilion is for use in winter
and bad weather and during the even-
ings, and has a playroom, a quiet room
and a kitchen. Its flat roof is part
of the play area and has different

4, gravestone designed by Sir Gilbert Scorr for
his son Albert Henry, situated in Petersham

churchyard, 5.

6, the do-it-yourself playground on its permanent site in Notting Hill.

levels and a turret. It is reached only
by step-ladder. The material excavated
in building the pavilion has been used
to make an embankment along one
side of the adventure play area.

LEICESTER SCIENCE PRECINCT
We are asked to point out that the
reference in AR, January, 1966,
Preview issu¢ to the new building
now going up in the science precinct at
Leicester University as being the work
of a firm of industrial package-dealers
was incorrect. The architect of the
building is Mr. W. F. Johnson, chief
architect, Courtaulds Technical Ser-
vices Ltd; the quantity surveyors,
Monk and Dunstone.

correspondence |

EKISTICS

To the Editors.

sIrs: Lord Llewelyn-Davies's article in
your December issue indicates very
clearly the scale of thought and action
which is necessary in order to under-
stand and tackle the problems now
facing us. The need for multi-disci-
plinary groups thinking on so large
a scale spotlights two vital deficiencies
in our current way of doing things, one
administrative and the other educa-
tional.

The administrative problem, which
is largely generated by the current
state of professional education, con-
cerns our almost complete lack of
ability or willingness to promote
multi-disciplinary studies on an appro-
priate scale. Professional hierarchies
have developed in such a way as to
make collaboration well-nigh im-
possible, Large government bodies,
which could find both the manpower
and the money, are divided vertically
under chief officers, and proposals for
collaboration seem to raise insur-
mountable problems of status, second-
ment, finance, responsibility, accom-
modation, etc. It is impossble to know
which of these problems is ‘real.’
It could be argued that large govern-
ment bodies are not the place to do
such work, but, because much of the
money for it comes from government
sources, these traditional concepts
have the same effect when applications
for support are being considered.

The question that must be asked is:
How well fitted is the architect to
play his part in multi-disciplinary

collaboration? In many schools of
architecture the direction of the course
is still towards complete buildings
and cities rather than complete minds.
A kind of technical ‘know-how’ is
taught which rapidly gets out of date,
and no attempt is made to create a
framework of knowledge into which
the basis of technology fits along with
the bases of many other subjects.
Several schools are introducing sub-
jects such as statistics or management,
with lecture courses either grafted on
to, or in place of, other lectures. These
lectures run parallel with the produc-
tion of intuitive designs in the studio,
where students begin by applying
what general knowledge they may
have to small precise subjects and
later apply a deeper knowledge, largely
intuitively, to more general subjects.
It is only rarely suggested that abstract
forms of planning should be mastered
(together with other disciplines) before
an attempt is made to ‘design.” Yet
in other disciplines in which the idea
of design is involved, such an order
would be assumed. The purely visual
emphasis given by the majority of
architectural schools blinds the student
to the fact that design, or form-
determination, can be equally con-
cerned with non-visual aspects, c.g.
legislation, cost, supply, distribution.
Because of this highly subjective
approach, the architectural student
designs buildings without the ability
to consider objectively all the non-
visual and abstract questions of how
the community affects his building
and how the building affects the
community. The student would do
better by starting with the considera-
tion of general problems generally,
and later considering more precise
problems more precisely, an overall
knowledge of the likely interacting
factors making for greater objectivity.
Having said this, T am tempted to
wonder whether architectural educa-
tion is not back-to-front. It might well
be better to teach ‘planning’ (for
want of a better word) from which
those wishing to practise its archi-
tectural aspects could proceed to do so
at post-graduate level.
Yours, elc.,
RAYMOND MOSS
Southend-on-Sea,

GREEEK NEWSLETTER

To the Editors.

sirs: 1 cannot help feeling a little
disappointed over Marina and Robert
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Adams’s article under the above title
in your November issue. Although I
agree with many of its points, I
strongly object to the run-down of
Greek architects in general by the
rash and sweeping statement that,
having always been affected by the
country’s rich architectural tradition,
they are encouraged to simulate classi-
cal forms in modern buildings, such as
the planetarium in Syngrou Avenue
illustrated in the article. Of the many
hundreds of buildings that have gone
up in Greece during the past ten years,

this is almost unique, a special
exception.
Yours, etc.,
E. D. VASSILIADIS
Athens.

Mr. and Mrs. Adams write that they
cannot agree since they have seen
numerous such examples in Greece.

NO FUTURE IN THE TOWN HALL
To the Editors.

sirs: May I make some belated com-
ments about the article under the
above title in your October, 1965,
issue? By the time I had worked in
two City Architects’ Departments and
for the National Coal Board, I was
ready to leave Britain for some years.
That was 1954. Much more recently,
good friends from architecture-school
days have finally left the town hall
for the most precarious small prac-
tices, with audible sighs of relief.
None of us is particularly vain or
particularly lacking in social conscious-
ness; rather the opposite, but to have
one’s own working hours, freedom
from the institutionalized tea or
coffee break and all the rest of the
NALGO atmosphere, is worth a lot.

What you say about research, and
continuity of knowledge and ex-
perience, is very true and raises an
interesting question. Wouldn't it be
well to recognize the ego-involvement
and bohemian predilections of many
bright designers and seek a system
that would give maximum advantage
to all types? Why couldn’t there be,
around a city hall, any number of
small offices in lofts, attics, private
apartments; two or three-man prac-
tices in the best Italian manner, work-
ing all night and sleeping all morning
if they so desired? Others with
steadier habits, or even these same
prima-donnas for a few hours each
week, could work in the City, or in
a National subsidized bureau, at all
that side of ‘environmental design’
that needs a selfless and ‘objective’
attitude—collecting data of various
kinds, doing studies of ‘court-housing’
or homes for the elderly, or structural
systems. The ‘act of architecture,” the
integration of all this information,
with its necessary attitudes and
agonizing, should take place in the
setting most conducive to it, which is
probably not among all the other
municipal clerks.

That invaluable hero-figure Le
Corbusier is a marvellous model for
the rational separation of activities.
Painter in the morning—how enviably
unprofessional ! —architect in the after-
noon—where did he find such col-
leagues?—he acted out in one life
the integration that our society needs.
We were most hypocritical when we
praised Corb so much and waited
breathless for his next building with-

out acknowledging the connection
between it and his painting and his
wood sculpture and his theoretical
writings, and perhaps even his poetry.
A Le Corbusier adjusted to the
delicate personnel-relations of some
City Architect's Department, even
heading one, could not have existed.
Yours, etc.,

JOHN KENYON

City Planning Dept.,
Qakland, California.

REDEVELOPMENT IN
KENSINGTON

To the Editors.

siks: In your January Preview issue,
in which you illustrate the compre-
hensive redevelopment of Lancaster
Road, Kensington, by Clifford Wear-
den and Associates, you criticize the
layout, in your introduction, as being
‘perhaps over-formal,” particularizing
that ‘the double herringbone terraces
seen guaranteed to disrupt the con-
sistent and harmonious curves of the
Victorian housing towards Ladbroke
Grove.”

This Victorian crescent layout is
surely in itself highly formalized and,
like all crescents, poses the problem of
how to integrate the ‘back’ of the
curve with other developments, The
whole of the design was based upon
a pattern imposed by the surroundings.
In principle these surroundings form
three separate elements: the LCC
Latimer Road development to the
north-west of the Metropolitan Rail-
way viaduct; the strong axis formed
by fairly recent buildings along
Clarendon Road; and the crescents
that you mention. The herringbone
pattern was a logical development of
the axes of these three elements, and
as used does in its essential framework
follow the lines of the crescents
whilst at the same time terminating
them and allowing them to develop
into another spatial form, which is
more compatible with the rest of the
area both existing and proposed.

From the town planning point of
view, it is perhaps a pity that the
area between Blenheim Crescent and
Cornwall Crescent was not included in
the redevelopment area, since the
principle of open space and gardens
between houses, evident in the other
crescents, has been here abandoned.

Yours, etc.,
PETER DEAKINS
London, SW5.

book reviews

MODERN MECCA

CHICAGQ'S FAMOUS BUILDINGS. Edited
by Arthur Siegel. [Tniversity of Chicago Press.
$2.95 (hard cover),

They are mending the roof of the
Robie House, the city’s official maga-
zine (Chicago, quarterly) had virtually
a special issue on architecture last
summer, every picture-postcard you
buy shows the twin towers of Marina
City, a new edition of Harriet Mon-
roe's John Wellborn Roor is in course
of preparation—Chicago is beginning
to adjust, at last, to her role as the
only berithmte Architekturstadr in
North America. The adjustment is still
uncertain, the architectural outlook
less than one hundred per cent rosy—

the Robie House Committee still need
a vast amount more money; Ira Bach,
the city-planning commissioner and
front man of the Landmarks Com-
mission, has been kicked upstairs to
a position of apparent impotence, and
if you ask any six intelligent citizens to
direct you to the new Federal Center,
five will direct you to the New Civic
Center (and vice versa).

But the progress is real, and Arthur
Siegel's pocket guide (also available
in paper-back) is here to prove it, not
only by listing some ninety odd build-
ings of architectural interest, but also
by the backing it was able to muster:
private munificence from the Graham
Foundation, a municipal subvention
on the recommendation of Mayor
Richard E. Daley, and a battery of
introductory essays from Ira Bach,
Hugh Duncan and Carl Condit. After
all that, it had to be a substantial piece
of scholarship informed by a serious
approach to its topic, and if one makes
one or two sharpish criticisms of the
result, it is for failing to live up to the
last millimetre of this high promise (and
to the high quality of the excellent
photographs).

The guide’s most infuriating fault
derives, fairly directly, from its dis-
tinguished backers. The Chicago of
the title is strictly and narrowly
Mayor Daley’s city, and this is not the
whole of the architectural Chicago
that visitors go to see. Oak Park and
River Forest being just outside the
city’s administrative boundaries, the
bulk of Wright's Prairiec houses miss
inclusion in the book by margins as
small as seven blocks (the Fricke
house) while a couple of dozen more
—and Unity Temple—are within
thirty blocks of city limits, but not in
this book. What Siegel is really
offering then, is a guide to Condit’s
commercial Chicago—the areas and
the eras covered by The Rise of the
Skyscraper and The Chicago Shool of
Architecture, from the beloved old
water-tower to Walter Netsch's new
campus on Halsted Street. Here its only
serious fault is the inclusion of de-
molished buildings, alwaysa problemin
a city whose face is apt to change in the
time a book is with the printers. Yet if
buildings demolished as long ago as
1961, before the book was begun, can
be included on no better grounds than
that they constitute ‘a good example of
the standard reached in the best aver-
age practice,” then surely there are
grounds for including some reference
to a building demolished in 1930 that
set a better than average standard
which Chicago architects still have to
sweat hard to match—Richardson’s
Marshall Field Store. There are build-
ings in this book that, though interest-
ing enough, have far less presence in
the Chicago scene than Richardson’s
vanished masterpiece, and could well
yield their pages to a brief notice of
Marshall Field in later editions.

And later editions there should—
must—be, Whatever criticisms have
been made, the book is already re-
quired reading for the Chicago visitor.
It steers him not only towards the
named, known masterpieces, but also
the heroic oddities like the First
Infantry Armory, and the quiet, easily
overlooked minor pieces like Keck’s
neat little apartment block at 5551
South University. While it falls into
the common error of regarding the

Heller House as good architecture
simply because it is by Frank Lloyd
Wright, it keeps the flag flying for
such neglected fragments as Elmslie’s
Edison shop, and remembers to include
the ‘Bird-cage’ car-park on Wacker
Drive. Marginal reservations aside,
its hard core is the kind of architectural
handbook Chicago deserves.

REYNER BANHAM

ENGLAND ALONE

THE ENGLISH MEDIEVAL HOUSE. By
Margaret Wood, Phoenix Hause, 1965,
8 guineas.

Dr. Margaret Wood (Mrs. Kaines-
Thomas) produced her annotated
catalogue of Norman domestic archi-
tecture in England in 1935, Since then
she has worked exclusively on English
medieval houses, and, as one might
expect from the fruit of thirty years
labours, her new book is comprehen-
sive. One would even be ready to call
it definitive, if it were not for one
serious shortcoming: this is her
disregard for the European setting.
What Dr. Wood takes in of foreign
houses is introduced frankly as
second-hand. This is in contrast to,
for example, Dr. Simpson at Aber-
deen, who is as well versed in Conti-
nental castles as in Scottish or English.
Yet how illuminating for halls would
have been comparisons with Goslar
or the archbishops’ and bishops® halls
in France.

Otherwise there can be nothing but
praise for Dr. Wood’s book. On over
400 pages and with nearly 450 illus-
trations she tells us everything about
the medieval house: the plan, the
individual rooms, screen, hearth,
louvres, bathrooms and water supply,
lavatories, and she gives a biblio-
graphic reference to every one of the
hundreds and hundreds of items
mentioned. To convey an idea of the
number of buildings involved Dr.
Wood has ¢. 40 Norman and ¢. 100
thirteenth-century houses. She has
evidently seen most of the buildings
herself, although—Ilike all of us—she
has had to rely to a certain extent on
what has been published. This explains,
for instance, why she discusses several
buildings in Westmorland, which
has been covered by the Royal Com-
mission, and only one in Cumber-
land, which is a county poor in
literature, Thus the Deanery at Carlisle
1S missing,

Certain other buildings or features
are, of course, also missing, but there
are very few of them; for instance the
Seats of Honour at Mayfield, Sussex,
and the two consecutive halls at
Pickering (twelfth and early fourteenth
century). But who would wish yet
more detail in a book so crammed full
with detail already? ‘Next in the
scale comes the hall of c. 1300 at
Broughton Castle which compares in
size with Lytlington’s Hall at West-
minster (c. 1375-6), as Haddon Hall
may be compared with that at Cleve-
don Court, c. 1320. The hall at Cumnor
Place was similar to that at Sutton
Courtenay Abbey’ and so on. This is
a fair sample. A little more evocation
would have helped the book. As it is,
one will read it with respect and great
profit and then keep it on the shelf
for constant reference. It is—this
should be remembered—the first
serious replacement of Hudson Turner,
and Hudson Turner came out in 1851,

N. PEVSNER
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The long construction delays and continually
increasing cost of the Sydney Opera House
(competition won by Jorn Utzon in 1956) have
made the architectural news from Australia for a
number of years. The building is now at last,
however, rapidly taking shape as the photograph
opposite by Max Dupain, of two of the
shells, shows. Above is the model of the
whole building seen from the east, with the magjor
hall on the left, the minor hall on the right
and the restaurant shell in the left foreground.
The engineer responsible for constructing_the
shells is Ove Arup.

WHOSE REDUNDANT CHURCHES?

It is an instructive paradox, worth pondering by
Christians, that the man who by his theories and
influence and by his foundation of the Society for the
Protection of Ancient Buildings, did most to preserve
the Church’s heritage of ancient buildings, was a con-
firmed agnostic. William Morris’s fervent belief that
the stone and timber fabrics of parish churches
expressed physically the whole life of ordinary people
was only equalled by his hatred of the professionals
who meddled with them. Churches, he implied, were
far too serious a matter to be left to their clergy.
Nowhere was this more true than in the treatment of
those buildings which from the pastoral and liturgical
points of view had become redundant.

Morris’s disquiet is still relevant. The now fashionable
iconoclasm of those church leaders who condemn
church buildings as worldly trivialities has been
matched by the loving cruelty of those (often the
same people) who have bullied and battered them to
fit their ephemeral fashions of outward performance
(Peter Anson’s Fashions in Church Furnishings, 1840—
1940, gives a blow-by-blow account of this). The
highly specialized concerns of theology, liturgy, his-
tory, aesthetics, surveying, finance and property
development have usually been handled by the
Churches (not just the Church of England) in a kind
of portmanteau half-ignorance by officials such as
Archdeacons and Diocesan Surveyors. Yet, at least
on paper, the Church of England is at the present
moment, in a little-known piece of legislation called
the ‘Pastoral Reorganization Measure,” making a fun-
damental attempt to remedy this. The Measure is the

climax of many years of confusion and difficulty.
In the Ancient Monuments Act of 1913, the first
major piece of legislation which extended official care
and £rotection to buildings as well as earthworks and
which initiated the ‘scheduling’ of valuable examples
by the then Ministry of Works, churches were ex-
cluded. Until an eloquent speech in the House of
Lords, however, by the Archbishop of Canterbury,
Dr. Randall Davidson, they had been included in the
draft Bill because of a considerable public anxiety
about the Church’s stewardship of her buildings.
There is just as great an anxiety fifty years later—
although the reason is quite different. In 1913, the
Church was still prosperous and relatively static in
its pastoral organization, and the fears expressed were
that the excessive zeal of Victorian ‘restorations’ might
still be repeated. The Archbishop was able to point to
the Church’s own faculty system, of which the first
recorded instance dates from 1236, as a means of
giving or withholding permission for alterations to
church fabriecs, far older and more detailed than
anything the State had yet provided. He promised the
awakening conscience of ‘Anti-Scrape’ would be ex-
pressed within the Church, if left alone. So in 1914 a
system of Diocesan Advisory Committees (DAC’s),
men and women appointed by each Bishop, was set
up, the co-ordinating body, the Central Council for
the Care of Churches, following in 1921. However, the
Central Council’s imposition of SPAB ‘good taste’ in
the hangover from Victorianism had been adopted
after the horse had bolted, after most of the major
restorations. The council’s particular expertise was in
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thereclaiming of ‘unrestored’ redundant churchesin the
remote countryside.

But in fact throughout the 1920s and 1930s a much
more serious problem was growing, in the fundamental
transition away from the expansionist Victorian
Church, which had resolutely built chapels-of-ease in
the most remote rural hamlets and had peppered the
Jewish areas of the East End with churches which
were pastorally redundant almost from the moment
that they were built. These East End churches had
been a foretaste of future developments, being built
from the proceeds of demolishing City churches by
Wren. They in turn became redundant, as the working-
class residential population itself moved out to the
new suburban estates such as Becontree. But with a
few notorious exceptions—the abortive scheme of 1920
for demolishing more City churches, the demolition of
All Hallows, Lombard Street, and St. Paul’s, Sheffield,
in 1987—the Church of England remained hardly
aware of the scale of social and demographic change.
The war changed everything. Redundant churches in
city centres suffered very considerable damage, and
from early in the war the more progressive adminis-
trators and pastoral experts realized that their oppor-
tunity had come. The old Union of Benefices Measure
was replaced by the Reorganization Areas Measures
(1944). Under this a reorganization committee was
set up in each diocese to designate areas affected by
bombing and to recommend to the Church Com-
missioners which churches in those areas should be
closed, so that their sites could be sold to raise money
for churches in new areas. Under the pressure of this
work, the Diocesan Advisory Committee system in
effect broke down. Its members were generally
medievalists or Georgians, expert in dealing with the
8,800 medieval churches and the 520 Georgian
churches. The churches affected by the bombing, how-
ever, were very largely to be found among 8,900 built
since 1880. Apart from the occasional Betjeman or
Piper or Hussey, the DAC’s were devoid of expertise
on Victorian churches. They were allowed to nominate
only one member to represent them on each
reorganization committee and, in spite of remonstra-
tions from the Central Council, he turned out
frequently to be an Archdeacon or some other diocesan
dignitary who could hardly be expected to place
aesthetic before administrative criteria.

In London matters were even worse: a special War
Damage Repair Committee was set up entirely inde-
pendent of the DAC. Pastorally, it was a great
achievement. Architecturally, although the vast
majority of the churches demolished were of little
interest, there was much unnecessary carnage and a
general failure to consider possible alternative uses;
in the rush it was perhaps forgotten that medieval
churches had frequently stood in ruins for centuries
before changing fortunes overtook them (for example,
Aldrington, Durrington and West Blatchington in the
Brighton-Worthing area). Pearson’s St. John’s, Red
Lion Square, with much of its vaulting intact, could
have been a superb War Memorial ruin—a much more
effective one than the uninteresting medieval church
of Holy Cross, Southampton. Brooks’s St. Saviour’s,
Hoxton, was not ‘severely damaged’ as the architec-
tural histories say; a bit of roof had been burnt off at
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the east end and a good deal of rain had come through;
it was demolished, apparently for ‘party’ reasons of
Low versus High, in favour of the mean little church
of St. Ann, which, unlike St. Saviour’s, was badly
placed pastorally, close to another (surviving) Brooks
church. Equally bad were some of the emasculations
performed by ecclesiastical architects with little
sympathy for the ruins entrusted to them (perhaps
the worst was not Anglican, but Roman Catholic—
the treatment of Pugin’s St. George’s Cathedral,
Southwark). South of the river George Gilbert Scott
the Younger’s St. Agnes, Kennington, was replaced
by a brick tabernacle a third its size at just the time
when the LCC’s Brandon Estate began to rise behind
it to give it a congregation. (Scott the Younger’s other
major London work, All Hallows, Southwark, was lost
in a similar manner). However, Street’s splendid
adjoining church of St. John the Divine, Kennington,
much worse damaged than St. Agnes, but beautifully
restored by Goodhart-Rendel, stands as a witness of
what could have been done elsewhere.
Such things continued in the ’fifties, with a series of
well-publicized scandals: Holy Trinity, Leeds, of 1721,
reprieved at the eleventh hour; Christ Church, Salford,
a fine Greek Revival work of 1830 demolished; St.
Mary, Sandwich, a fascinating relic of a great medieval
church, saved by the first guerilla action of Ivor
Bulmer-Thomas and his Friends of Friendless
Churches. Under the Union of Benefices Measure, the
Church Commissioners had to consult the Central
Council on each case of demolition, but the council
had no real authority. Yet the 1947 Town and Country
Planning Act perpetuated the 1913 exemption from
any planning control of ‘buildings in ecclesiastical use.’
Such things could not continue, particularly as the
rising cost of restoring medieval churches was putting
even the traditionally appreciated heritage in jeopardy
—in spite of the foundation in 1952 of the Historic
Churches Preservation Trust.
One of the few encouraging signs in the period since
1945 was the discovery of new uses for nearly a hun-
dred redundant churches, ranging from George Pace’s
conversion of St. John’s Ousebridge at York into the
Institute for Advanced Architectural Studies, to the
roposed Maritime Museum in St. George’s, Great
armouth, tothe conversion of St. Nicholas, Rochester,
by David Nye and Partners into diocesan offices.
Various of Wren’s City churches were converted for
specialized purposes. But these were a tiny minority.
So the question has had to be faced: to whom are these
churches redundant? The Church does not need them,
and yet clearly the best of them are a national posses-
sion. Envious eyes have naturally been cast at the
post-war renovation of churches by State monuments
authorities in Italy and France. The Bishop of Nor-
wich’s Committee on Disused Churches recommended
to the Church Assembly in 1949 that such buildings
should be offered to the Ministry of Works for guar-
dianship, if possible with a proviso that they could be
reclaimed for worship later if necessary. The Ministry
then made encouraging noises, but the Labour Govern-
ment fell, and not until 1958 was action taken again
with the appointment of the Bridges Commission.
As a result of three different reports the Pastoral
Reorganization Measure is now painfully feeling its
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way through the Church Assembly, who are likely to
debate it decisively next summer. These reports, in
reverse order, are: the Paul Report (1963) on the pay
and deployment of the clergy, the architectural im-
portance of which is simply that it recommends, by
ending the parson’s freehold, a radical redeployment
of manpower, closing down many old churches and
opening many new ones; the Ilford Report (1961) on
pastoral reorganization legislation (the main report
from the commission preparing the pastoral measure),
which recommends the permanent adoption of the
now disused war-time measures, setting up ‘pastoral
committees’ who will take churches not singly but as
part of reorganized areas; and, the most important
architecturally, the Bridges Report (1960) on redund-
ant churches. The actual procedure proposed in the
Pastoral Measure is taken largely from ggidges.

The new system, when eventually it is passed (say,
with luck, 1968), will have four clearly defined stages,
with expert opinion properly consulted at each. First,
the Diocesan Pastoral Committee will prepare its
scheme for an area, consulting the DAC but concen-
trating primarily on pastoral needs. The Church Com-
missioners will then officially seal the scheme, before
referring redundant churches to a new Redundant
Churches Advisory Board, which will have the same
prestige and calibre as the Minister of Housing’s
Advisory Committee on Historic Buildings. If the
board says the church is worthless, demolition goes
ahead. If the board says it has merit, then the third
stage operates: a new Uses Committee, similar in
calibre to the Ministry of Public Building and Works’
bureau for historic houses, will have three years in
which to consult all available organizations in order
to find a possible new use for the building. This is a
crucial step forward, even more important than the
prestigious board, since it has been the Church’s
reluctance to see its buildings ‘desecrated’ (supposed
to be a bad advertisement, though no Italian hill city
bears this out) that has led to so many needless
demolitions. If the Uses Committee fails to find a use,
then the fourth stage is reached: in a few cases the
building will be transferred direct to the guardianship
of the Ministry of Public Building and Works, but
usually it will be transferred to the third important
new organization: the Redundant Churches Fund,
which—another crucial advance in fixing responsibility
—will be financed fifty-fifty by the Treasury and by
the Church Commissioners (the latter largely from
the sites of worthless redundant churches).

The doubts begin inevitably with the Treasury. The
Bridges Commission, which gave a figure of 867
churches then redundant and 421 likely to become so
within fifteen or twenty years, recommended a mini-
mum of £500,000—£1,000,000 for the first five years’
work. The Church asked the Treasury for half of
£500,000, the Treasury agreed in 1963 to only
£200,000—and that was just a provisional figure
before the change of Government. The whole pro-
cedure also depends on the Church Commissioners
resisting the temptation to sell highly profitable sites
when the churches have good architecture. That this
can at present happen even at DAC level is shown by
the current unhappy case of All Saints, Dorchester.
This is an admirable Early Victorian church by

Benjamin Ferrey, and its spire is a vital part of the
county town’s central skyline, grouping with Ferrey’s
town hall spire and with the medieval tower of St.
Peter’s. The Dorset County Museum want to take
over the church as an extra gallery, for which it
would be very well suited; but the DAC, who already
have outline planning permission for shops and offices
and who want the money to supplement the public
appeal for restoring St. Peter’s, put up virtually im-
possible terms to the museum (high rent, short lease,
full repairs). This is the kind of behaviour that the
Uses Committee will be able to override. Another great
Brooks church, St. Michael, Shoreditch, empty for
two years, must be kept until the new system is
working. Close liaison with the local authorities will
be vital, over matters of townscape and group value
as well as over new uses: Scott’s spire of St. Nicholas,
Colchester, was a tragic loss not long ago to one of
southern England’s few hill towns.
Two really serious problems will remain. The first is
how actually to maintain empty disused churches of
value, even when helped financially from the Redund-
ant Churches Fund. The Central Council’s sensible
proposal is that there should be two categories of
preservation: those first-class churches which would
be kept meticulously like Ministry of Works monu-
ments, and the second-class churches, many of them
in remote rural areas, where a state of ‘controlled
decay’ could be maintained. But the principal difficulty,
in the countryside as well as in the towns, is super-
vision against the very rapidly increasing social
disease of hooliganism—and insurance against it,
judging by the recent candid statement from the
Ecclesiastical Insurance Office on the increase in thefts
(churches have lost much of their primitive taboo).
The second problem is that the churches of the Church
of England are only part, although the most important
part, of the total picture. There are the vicarages,
which, according to a completely unexpected judg-
ment by Lord Denning in 1963, come within the
exemption from planning control of ‘buildings in
ecclesiastical use’—even though the building in that
particular case was a Gower Street terrace house
which had not been built as a vicarage. Does the same
apply to church schools? Still more serious, there is
the multitude of churches of the other denominations.
The Roman Catholics, although centralized on Rome,
are surprisingly diffuse within this Province, each
Bishop and his Diocesan Development Commission (if
he has one) being the sole law within his own area.
Important Catholic churches badly need listing—and
the Victorian Society has recently started on a pilot
project in the Archdiocese of Westminster. As regards
the Free Churches, the situation is, not surprisingly,
one of complete freedom, only the Methodists having
a highly organized central building agency (but this
is not really concerned with preservation). There is a
very strong case, as soon as the parliamentary time-
table allows, for legislation to bring all churches and
vicarages under planning control. The Central Council
would like ‘those under the faculty jurisdiction’ (i.e.
Anglican churches) to remain exempt, but even under
the new system, there would be no harm to Anglicans
in giving up being judge and jury in their own cases
in exchange for the helpful Treasury grants.
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This building, which will be officially opened next
month, forms the main entrance for all visitors to the
grounds near Slimbridge of the Wildfowl Trust, a
non-profit making organization founded in 1946 by
Peter Scott in order to promote the scientific study of
wildfowl in the wild state and in captivity, to propagate
wildfowl in captivity—especially those species which
are in danger of extinction—and to educate the public
to a greater appreciation of wildfowl in particular

and nature in general. The Trust’s Slimbridge grounds
reach down to the estuary of the Severn, which is the
winter home of up to five thousand wild geese. At
Slimbridge itself visitors can see the largest and most
varied collection of ducks, geese and swans in the
world, comprising over two thousand birds of more
than 160 different kinds. The birds can come right up
to the windows of this building.

The purpose of the building is to provide for the
reception of visitors, facilities for resident and visiting
scientists doing research work related to the collection
of wildfowl, and museum, exhibition and lecture-room
space. It has been sited so that approaching visitors are
screened from any view of the grounds until they

are inside the building, from the entrance hall of which
there is a magnificent view through wide plate-glass
windows of the ponds, the pens and the birds. These
windows are angled to face the best of the view, the
same angling being carried through the planning of the
building.

Off one side of the entrance hall is a shop and off the
other a hall (the Wolfson Hall) to be used temporarily
for lectures and permanently for an exhibition, which
deals with the work of the Trust and the

arrangement and nature of the collection of wildfowl
in the grounds. Visitors pass through the exhibition to
reach the grounds; the exit is alongside the north wing,
containing the shop, which has display windows

facing this direction. On the first floor are seven
individual research rooms and a small technical library.
Beyond the exhibition hall and reaching across

the south side of the ponds an extension (shown in the
plan but at present only designed in sketch form) will
be built at a later date to provide a permanent

lecture theatre, further exhibition space, a museum
and service space, with offices and further research
rooms on the upper floor.

The building just completed is of load-bearing brick
with London stock facings; these resemble in colour and
texture the local bricks which were used for the
Trust’s earlier buildings but are no longer made. The
cost of the building was considerably reduced by

the generosity of the sub-contractors and suppliers
(list on page 242) all of whom either gave materials

or services, supplied them at reduced rates or
contributed directly to the building fund.

Associate architect in charge, Francis Hookham.
Consulting engineer, Peter Dann. Quantity surveyors,
Davis, Belfield & Everest.

first floor pian phase |
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10, service area
11, tropical court
12, lecture theatrs

ground floor plan phase | (phase 2 in ..m-).'.
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5, the view of the lake from the entrance hall,
6, the staircase from the entrance hall to the

”

first floor research rooms. 7, the ground floor
temporary lecture room and exhibition area.
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The monastery church at Moldovitsa, 1 on the facing
page, is one of the group of churches in northern
Moldavia, described and illusirated in the accom-
panying article, which are unique in being completely
covered externally with Byzantine-style paintings,
executed for the moest part early in the sixzteenth
century. The photograph shows the southern apse
and buttresses. The paintings were done in 1537.

J.M.Richards

Hidden away in the Carpathian mountains,
in that part of the Bukovina that still
remains Roumanian—the northern part
having been ceded to Russia during the
second World War—are half-a-dozen
remarkably well preserved medieval
churches, unique in Europe on account
of the paintings that cover their exterior
walls from base to overhanging eaves and
round the whole perimeter of each build-
ing.

The Bukovina was part of the Kingdom
of Moldavia, a kingdom that resisted the
invasion of the Turks until late in the
sixteenth century, and these churches—
some belonging to monasteries while
others were simple village churches—were
built and decorated only a short while
before Turkish suzerainty was finally
accepted. They date either from the reign
of Stephen the Great (1481-1504), Mol-
davia’s warrior-king, or from that of one
of his immediate successors. The paintings
are completely Byzantine in style and
feeling, though carried out (mostly be-
tween 1585 and 1550) nearly a hundred
years after the fall of Constantinople, so
long did the disintegration of the Byzan-
tine civilization, which followed the fall of
Constantinople to the Turks in 1458, take
to make itself felt in the remoter provinces.
This northern province of Roumania, now
lying close along the Russian border,
retains a sense of remoteness to this day.
The country’s present energetic programme
of modernization is based on a policy of
distributing new industries throughout the
less developed areas, and this has turned
Suceava, for example, the chief town of the
region, into a thriving industrial city;
yet in the mountain valleys the way of
life, though not poverty-stricken, remains
primitive and can have changed little in
appearance since the Middle Ages. Much
of the land is deep forest, still inhabited
by wolves; the rest is open farmland
folded among steep valleys, where plough-
ing is done by oxen (soon no doubt to be




superseded by tractors, omitting the
intermediate or horse-drawn
development), where women work in the
fields and where they and the men, clad
in embroidered sheepskin jackets, populate
a scene like a painting by Pieter Bruegel.
The churches are approached along rough
unmade roads, sometimes impassable in
winter when the snow lies thick on the
ground. Those which were built simply as
parish churches are naturally in inhabited
valleys, but several belonged to remotely
sited monasteries. The latter were fortified,
with the church isolated in the centre of a
square of stone buildings, facing inwards
and entered by a single protected gateway.
They are usually sited at the junction of
three valleys, and the surrounding land-
scape of forested hills is strikingly beauti-
ful. The enclosed squares are grassed, and
in this predominantly green and white
setting—the green contributed by the level
grass and a back-cloth of trees and the
white by stone walls and perhaps patches
of new fallen snow—the coloured churches
stand up strangely, like rich, exotic objects
of furniture.

The churches, like all the Byzantine
churches of the region, are high and
narrow with apsidal ends. They have
shingle-covered roofs, in most
crowned by a cupola, with broad over-
hanging eaves. Inside they are divided—
again like all Byzantine (that is, Greek
Orthodox) churches—into three compart-
ments: the sanctuary, the naos separated
from it by a screen, and the pronaos,
walled off except, usually, for a narrow
door. The services in the naos are
attended by men only, women not being
allowed further in than the pronaos.

At two of the monasteries, Sucevitsa and
Moldovitsa, the whole group of buildings
is fairly intact, though only because of
the extensive restorations that have been
carried out in the last few years. This has
been done, by the Government depart-
ment in Bucharest responsible for con-
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serving historic buildings, with restraint
as well as expert scholarship. It is particu-
larly to be welcomed that in the case of
the churches themselves the only restora-
tion undertaken is structural repair and
maintenance; no attempt is made to
retouch the paintings even where they
have become blurred and faded on the
side exposed to the weather.

There were originally many monasteries in
the region, most of which survived under
the Turks, but when the Bukovina became
part of the Austrian Empire in 1775,
Joseph II closed all but seven of them.
Some were reopened after the territory
was restored to Roumania in 1918, and
the two mentioned above that possess
well preserved exterior paintings, Sucevitsa
and Moldovitsa, are still in use as convents,
with fifteen or twenty nuns in residence in
the vast rambling buildings. They will not
however remain so for long, sinee no
young nuns are being admitted and the
religious population will gradually die off.
At Gura Humorului there are only the
ruins of the surrounding monastic build-
ings, and here and elsewhere the church
functions as a parish church, under the
care of a priest. This, and the churches
that began simply as parish churches, are
in active use and near one of them, that
at Voronets, a new village church of timber
is being built nearby so that the old one
need no longer be used for services and
candle-smoke blacken theinterior paintings.
These, though darkened by centuries of
smoke from ecandles and braziers, are
reasonably well preserved. What is as-
tonishing is the state of preservation of
the exterior wall-paintings after four
hundred years’ exposure. Their colours
are strong and clear and the detail of the
paintings beautifully sharp. They are to
a great degree protected from the wet
by the wide overhang of the timber-lined
caves, and only on the weather side, facing
the prevailing wind, and on the walls of
projecting porches, are there areas where

the colours have faded and in some places
the paintings almost wholly worn away.

The paintings continue round window
openings and over buttresses and apses,
ignoring, and playing strange perspective
tricks with, the geometrical form of the
building. Where they curve away into the
angles they create the effect of an enor-
mous open illuminated book. For the most
part they divide the wall surface into
small rectangular compartments, each
group of compartments containing a
related series of scenes or figures. The
arrangement and the themes depicted
vary from church to church, but in every
case the eastern apse (there are sometimes
also apses on the north and south) has its
own subject treated in a broader and more
monumental way—a Last Judgment, per-
haps, or a representation of the Ladder of
Paradise or of the damned tumbling into
Hell. Throughout there is a strange array
of pagan motifs and personalities woven
in among the religious: signs of the zodiac,
portraits of the Greek philosophers (at
both Suecevitsa and Moldovitsa) and so on.
At Moldovitsa also there is a vigorous
representation on the south wall of
Constantinople besieged by the Persians.

The remarkable preservation of the paint-
ings can be attributed in part to the
careful technique employed.* The paint-
ings were done on a plaster base, made
with the addition of flax or hemp. The
pigments were vegetable or mineral (earth-
colours), using ox-gall as a binder, laid
on to a preparation of powdered charcoal
—made from limewood—which prevented
too great a reaction between paint and
plaster. The actual medium was egg-yolk.
A limited range of colours was used, mostly
the same colours that were used locally
for dyeing woollen cloth: red from the
madder plant, blue from indigo and so on.

There were also the ochres and other

(continued on page 191
* This information about technique iz given by Goorges
Oprescu in his introduction to the Unesco publication,

Rumania: Painted Churches of Moldavia. (New York and
Paris, 1063.)




Sucevitsa

2 (facing page), the church in its typical position in
the centre of the square cowrtyard formed by the
defensive walls of the monastery and its buildings.

Gura Humorului

3, the apsidal east end of the church on the left; the
Sree-standing bell tower beyond. 4, looking through
the narthex, showing the typical widely projecting
caves and the way the wall painlings are carrvied
round and within the arcade and over ils vaulted
ceiling. 5, part of the south wall with the open narthex
at the wesl end. The paintings were done in 1535.
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Moldovitsa

G, from the south (the paintings were done in 15

7. the east end of the church with some of the res
monastery buwildings in the background. 8, detail of
part of the sowlh wall, alongside the narthex, with a
painting representing the siege of Constantinople by
the Persians in the seventh century. It can be dated
by the weapons and costumes. Portrayed among the
besieged are the Emperor, the Empress and the
Patriarch. 9, the west end of the church with
its double arcaded narthex. 10, looking inlo the
enlrance, which is throwgh the narthex, with one
of the nuns who still occupy the monastic bwild-
ings. 11, detail of the south-y ern corner of the

narthex, Another view of Moldovitsa is on page 182,

Arbore

The church was under repair (see 23, page 191)
when these photographs were laken. 12 is a close-up of
paintings on the south wall of the church done in 1541.
The condition of the window-surround indicates

the need for the structural repairs being carried oul.
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Voronets
13, a Tree of Jesse occupies the major part of the
south wall—on the lefl in this picture. 14, the win-
st end, occupied by one vasl painting on
the subject of the Last Judgement. This picture
also shows the detached bell-tower. 15, close-up of
part of the Last Judgement on the west wall and
Slanking butlresses.
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Voronets

16. the south side of the ehaereh, with the  small door
leading direel into the pronaos. On the right of il,
the Tree of Jesse (see also 1.3); on the lefl the painlings
shown in elose-up in 17 and 18. 17, detail of part of
the south wall. The scene to the left of the window
depicts the Tartars flaying St. John of Suceava —an
event that is supposed to have occurred in the thir-
teenth century in the Crimea. The square panels above
show two scenes from the life of St. Nicholas. 18, por-
trait beside the south door of the Metropolitan Gregore
Rosca, by whose order the paintings were done in 1547
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Sucevitsa

Another church in the centre of a fortified monastery,
some of whose buildings can be seen in the background
of 19 (see also 2 on page 184). The exterior paintings
were done as late as 1602-1604. 20, the south proch.
21, the apsidal east end. 22, close-up of the paintings
seen wn 21, covering apses, window recesses and bui-
tresses, showing the subdivision inio ikon-like panels.

Arbore
23, a parish, not a monastic, church, under repair.
On the left is a free-standing bell-tower.

continued from page 184)

earth colours and green from chromium
oxide, and although gold was sometimes
used, more often it was replaced, no
doubt because of the expense, by a
greenish-vellow pigment extracted from
unripe wheat grains. Before painting
began. the subject was roughed out on the
plaster with a brush or a brick-red line.
The number of churches must at one time
have been very great. There are said to
have been as many as forty parish churches
alone,* painted in this way, and it is an
indication, if the figure is correct, of the
relatively undisturbed state of the country
under Stephen the Great, that in spite of
the pressure of the Turkish invasion not far
away, the work could go forward in so
many places without the protection of
monastery walls.

Fourteen churches exist today with some
remnant of exterior wall paintings, of
which nine have the paintings as remark-
ably well preserved as the photographs
accompanying this article show. Five of the
best preserved are illustrated here, though
one of them (Arbore) only partially
beeause it was under repair and covered
with scaffolding when the auther visited
and photographed it. A brief account
of the five churches, in the order in which
they were painted externally, follows.

Gura Humorului: This was one of the
monastery churches, but only ruins are
left of the surrounding monastic buildings.
It was built about 1530 by a boyar, Tudor
Bubuiog, who was Great Logothete (or
chancellor of the kingdom) during the
reign of Petru Rares, an illegitimate son of
Stephen the Great and the country’s last
powerful king. He reigned from 1352746
and after him the Moldavian princes
became gradually subservient to the Tur-
kish sultan. His portrait is one of the
figures in the exterior paintings. These
were done in 1435. In this church alone

* According to Donald Craik and Ruth Churchill: ‘Byzantine
Frescoes in the Bucowina.” AR, June, 1939,

the paintings inside were done in the
same vear—possibly, therefore, by the
same artists; generally the interior paint-
ings are carlier. The church has the usual
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section and plan, Gura Humorului

triple apse and an open narthex at the
west end. North-east of the church is a
free-standing bell-tower.

Moldovitsa: This again was a monastery,
but here the range of monastic buildings
is largely complete, though fairly
thoroughly restored. It was built in 1532
on the orders of Petru Rares, and the
exterior painting was done in 1537. The
plan of the church is similar to that of
Humorului; here too there is an open
narthex but it has a two-storey arcade.
The two side apses are flanked by
buttresses, and the small central window
of the eastern apse has a buttress below
it. The paintings include, on the south
side, a Tree of Jesse, on the same side
further west a portrayal of the siege of
Constantinople by the Persians in the
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seventh century and on the west {ront a
Last Judgment.

Arbore: This was a village church and was
built in 1502 by Luca Arbore, Governor
of Suceava and at the time commander-
in-chief of the Moldavian army. The
exterior paintings were done in 1541 and
only in this case is the name of the painter
chiefly responsible known—Dragos. The
church stands in a green close, which is
entered through the archway of a bell-
tower at the north-west corner. Its outline
is very simple, with no projecting but-
tresses and a plain semi-circular apse to
the sanctuary. There is no porch, the pro-
naos being entered direct from north and
south. There is no cupola either. This is
the church that was under restoration
when visited; the exterior paintings are in
less good condition than in the other four
churches shown here, except for those on
the west wall, depicting the lives of various
saints, which have been protected from
the weather by the depth of the recess.
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section and plan, Arbore

Voronets: This is one of the best of the
churches, in a superb situation near the
top of a broad wooded valley. It was
built in 1488 by Stephen the Great, but
the paintings were not done until 1547,
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by order of the Metropolitan Grigore
Rosca, who also added a narthex. His
portrait is among the paintings to the
left of the south door. The church has a
stone seat along the outer wall, formed as
part of the stone base. The pronaos is
again entered from north and south direct
from the outside. The apse has one small
central window and the naos is square
and is flanked by shallower apses with
their own small windows—see plan. The

exterior paintings include, occupying the
whole south side of the naos wall, an
elaborate Tree of Jesse. The whole of the
broad western end, which is without
windows—together with the two corner
buttresses—is occupied by a magnificent
Last Judgment.

Sucevitsa: This is the latest in date of the
churches with painted walls. It was built
in 1584 by Bishop George Movilescu, a
member of one of Moldavia’s ruling
families, and painted between 1602 and

1604. It has a fairly elaborate plan with a

triple apse, a small rectangular naos, a
large pronaos of two compartments and,
at the west end, a narthex entered through
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porches from the north and south. It was
a monastery church and is one of those
with its monastic buildings remaining
and in occupation, although restored. The
whole of the north wall is covered by one
painted composition on the subject of
the Ladder of Paradise, an invention of
the sixth-century theologian, St. John
Climacus, consisting of a ladder of thirty
rungs, each representing a different sin,
up which the souls of Christians are seen
climbing on their way to Paradise and,
if they are guilty of sin, being hurled off
the ladder by one of the black-skinned
demons who wait on every rung. At the
top of the wall is a choir of angels wel-
coming those who climb the ladder without
mishap. The apsidal end of the church has
seven rows of religious scenes and figures,
each in its own aedicule, with something
therefore of the appearance of a collection
of ikons.

The origin of this wholly localized practice
of painting the exterior walls of a church
is a matter for speculation. Since Byzantine
churches were normally painted (or de-
corated with mosaics) inside, one sug-
gestion, made by André Grabar*, is that
a source of the idea may have been the
paintings in the porches and open galleries
in some medieval Byzantine churches, in
Greece, Serbia and Bulgaria. Such paint-
ings were visible from the outside and to
spread them over the whole outside of the
building may be regarded as a logical
next step. Whether their origin was
something like this or whether it was a
spontaneous local development, the results
represent a unique and startling, as well
as a beautiful, late chapter in Byzantine
art history; and since the Moldavian
churches were built as well as painted many
years after the fall of Constantinople they
can best be defined as posthumous offspring
of the Byzantine civilization.

*In his preface to Rumania: The Painted Churches
Moldavia, Unosco (op. cit.). e
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1 (preceding page), looking along the facade of the building; Avenue Marnix BA"Q“ELAMBERT BRUSSEL
)

is on the right. 2, rear (east) elevation. 3, main elevation from the boulevard.
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WAL TR s L i L The building occupies a whole block fronting on to the
. - | Avenue Marnix, which is part of the inner ring of

boulevards surrounding the centre of Brussels.

The requirements were for flexibly planned office space

for the headquarters of the bank and its associated

companies, together with staff cafeteria, etc., a main

banking hall, vaults and safe-deposits, parking space

and residential accommodation for the Baron Lambert.

The whole of the glass-enclosed ground floor is

allocated to entrance foyers and banking halls, Above

: this are seven identical office floors, each with two

g e parallel corridors on either side of a central service

penthouse plan core and lift-hall, with the office space between
R e e e O ol e corridors and window walls laid out on a 5 ft. module
R RN, T Ti . ﬁlr_ i|" ; 'T§ in each direction. This module determines the spacing
| 5 I 5 3 . of structural units and window mullions; also of the

CETT W T T e . lighting units, which include fluorescent lights

: i = recessed into an acoustic tile ceiling. Movable
partitions can subdivide the space as needed.
Private offices and secretarial space occupy the two
o | long sides of the building and open-type general
- offices the spaces at either end.

p = . ! On the top floor is the penthouse flat of the Baron
| | | 'I7 | - Lambert, designed to accommodate also his important
s L T L T T collection of modern paintings and sculpture. Below
sevanch floor plan ground are two basements containing the vaults and
e e e S s s S s e RS SRR '*"““3 sa:fe-depomm, staff cafetena, lounge and kitchens and a

e e e e RS e e e e e R e = e

]
¥

parking garage for 120 cars. The entrance to the
garage, and for vans serving the building, is through
a single-storey structure to the east of the main block,
; reached from a side street. Nearby is a private car
s entrance for the penthouse and banking hall and,
! screened by a wall, parking space for 25-30 cars. The
) L building stands on a slightly raised paved platform
extended in front to form a forecourt containing a

ﬂg‘ large bronze sculpture by Henry Moore.

S e R e e e e e e e e e e

The reinforced concrete structure consists of interior
columns along the line of the walls of the central core
RSt e A M i e o and precast storey-height units forming the facades,
spaced at the modular interval of 5ft., outside the glass

reception 29, library wall. These facade units are cross shaped, with the
e 5 ?..."."..‘:ﬂ horizontal member acting as a spandrel beam to
oo e receive the floor slab (for which they acted as formwork
fan room 34, ballroom

guast badroom 35, sarvants’ living during construction) and the vertical member

. i - et s - -
E YN N LR R N N N NN N R RN N N RN T N

key 9, director

1, west lobby 10, watch guard

2, east lobby 11, srchives and storage
3, banking hall 12, vertical conveyor room
4, men's lockers 13, mall room

5, women's lockers 14, conference room

6, office 15, Janitor's closer
Pl i T 24, ng reom transmitting the perimeter floor-loads directly

= . downwards. Where the units join half-way between
floors the load is transmitted through a polished steel
ball-and-socket hinge joint, which is cast into the unit.
These facade units have an exposed aggregrate of

i marble chips, polished after casting. They begin at first
floor level, where there is a deep cantilevered concrete
slab which transmits the perimeter loads to columns
placed 15ft. back from the facade. The penthouse roof
structure is cantilevered from the interior columns.
The ground-floor banking halls, occupied basements
and penthouse flat are fully air-conditioned. Heating of
the office floors is by fin-type radiators along the window
wall below a 2ft. cill, supplemented by warmed air

A g in the perimeter office space supplied from a duct in the
A o .li- e corridor ceilings. Hopper-type windows open in every

BEBBREBES

module of the window wall, with fresh air induced by an
exhaust plenum in the same corridor duct.

I [l Partner in charge of design, Gordon Bunshaft. Project
/| manager, Frederick C. Gans. Design assistant, Whitson
M. Overcash. Structural engineer, Paul Weidlinger.

AU - W_w W W Mechanical engineers, Syska and Hennessy.
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eriticism

This is a highly significant building because
is was the first of a series, similar in style
and structure. that has changed the image
evoked by the letters SOM from one of
meticulously detailed Miesian glass curtain-
walling to one of sculpturally modelled
reinforced concrete units with neoclassical
overtones. Though only completed last year,
the Banque Lambert was designed in 1958
and was followed by the Rare Book Library
at Yale University and the Heinz building
at Hayes (England)—both further develop-
ments of the same idea; an idea which has
been pursued simultaneously in other Eng-
lish buildings, Examples are Philip Dowson’s
buildings for Somerville College, Oxford and
Corpus, Cambridge (AR, February 1965).
The origin of SOM’s abrupt adoption of this
new style can suitably be given in the archi-
tects’ own (1959) words: ‘While structural
steel is wused almost wuniversally in the
United States for office buildings, it was felt
that, due to the relatively high cost of such
a structure in Belgium, a reinforced concrete
frame would be more appropriate. The
architects also felt that the precision of a
metal and glass facade is appropriate for
erpressing a steel framed building but
inappropriate as an expression of a concrete
structure. In addition a metal and glass
facade would seem out of place in Brussels
among the stone and brick-faced buildings
which give the city a rather unified appear-
ance. With this in mind, and recalling also
the scale of the existing buildings along the
boulevard, the architects, with Paul Weid-
linger as consulting engineer, developed a
precast reinforced concrete structural unit
to be placed at modular intervals . . . around
the periphery of each typical floor.

The architects’ explanation continues with a
technical description of the structural unit,
but that much quotation is enough both
to confirm the high degree of rational
thinking that lies behind—as it always has
done—SOM'’s design decisions and to draw
attention, by its very reticence, to the ques-
tions it leaves unanswered, Whether they
meant to or not, SOM in this building not
only set a fashion for themselves but
conformed to a trend which has been infer-
nationally evident for some years, but
especially in the United States. There is no
need to repeat here the excellent summary
of this trend made in the AR as long ago as
1960 by Professor William Jordy (AR, March
1960: ‘The Formal Image: USA'"). Profes-
sor Jordy was concerned with the deliberate
management of facades, the contrived sym-
metry and the harking back to neoclassical
principles discernible in some of Philip
Johnson's work and in that of Yamasaki
and others. SOM are not, like some of these,
guilty of backsliding from rationalism into
formalism for its own sake; their role has
been to endow this new trend with a viable,
adaptable vocabulary, just as earlier, in
Lever House and subsequent buildings, they
endowed the Miesian conception of architec-
ture with a vocabulary adaptable to general
commercial use. It is therefore worth using
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the occasion of their first experiment with |

this concrete wvocabulary to examine the
architectural opportunities it offers and the
limitations it imposes.

First of all its positive achievements: the
Banque Lambert does, as the architects
claim, preserve by its use of an exposed
concrete wall-frame the scale and continuity
of the built-up frontage to the Brussels
boulevard; it does not blow a hole in it, as
a transparent curtain-walled building might
have done. It likewise furnishes the building
with a rhythm not unrelated to that of the
load-bearing brick and stone architecture
surrounding  it, But here the first question
arises. The architects imply that it expresses
concrete structure, It is certainly expressive
in the sense that the structural frame, in the
form of precast cruciform units, is
frankly exposed and gives its aesthetic
character to the building. But the character
it gives stops at the facade. The three-
dimensional spatial flexibility, the penetra-
tion of space between outside and in, that
are characteristic of frame construction,
whether the frame is of concrete or steel,
are mot expressed, In terms of townscape,
the creation of such an opaque, even~
rhythmed facade out of the mneeds and
economics of concrete construction is a
useful achievement; but it limits the range
of expression of which concrete structures
are capable, rather than enlarging it.
There is also the question of scale. The
somewhat inflated scale created by the
storey-height facade units gives the Bangue
Lambert the monumental presence that its
position on the outside curve of the boule-
vard requires, but when used elsewhere the
great size of the units can result in a blind
and even cumbersome rejection of the
human scale, which sensitive profiling of the
units cannot wholly put right.

A problem in this form of construction is
how to terminate the tiers of wall units at
top and bottom. In some buildings where
they are thus employed the units have been

" allowed to make the whole facade; for

example in the Heinz building, where the
base is simply a half-unit apparently sunk
in the ground and is visually not very satis-
factory. At the Banque Lambert, however,
the top of the building is neatly finished off
by the recessed penthouse storey, and at the
bottom the problem has been boldly solved
by stopping the units at the first floor slab,
which rests on large square columns recessed
within the building. Surprisingly, this does
not result in a weak and insufficiently sub-
stantial base because the horizontal line at
first floor level is strong enough to give the
superstructure the character of a facade
screen supported on it, rather than that of
a wall with openings, which would have
looked awkward with nothing but glass to
stand on, This is an example of the diffi-
culty of handling this, in many ways
admirable, form of concrete construction;
its virtue lies in its looking what it is; yet
its limitations are most effectively over-
come by means that make it look what it
is mot.

It will nevertheless be clear from the above
that most of one’s reservations about the

aesthetic acceptability of this form of struc-
ture, which SOM have helped to put into

common currency, apply less to their Banque
Lambert than to other buildings, and in
their handling of the base there is only one
defect: the insensitive design of the ground
floor columns themselves. These have a
profile presumably designed to be in keeping
with the moulded profile of the cruciform
frame wunits, but the result is a clumsy,
outward-spreading entasis far removed from
SOM’s usual delicacy of detailing. Elsewhere
this is impeccable, The precision of detail
and quality of craftsmanship throughout the
building is such as SOM are almost alone
in regularly achieving. J.M.R.
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4, the paved forecourt with bronze sculp-
ture by Henry Moore. 5, part corner of
the building, showing profiling of the
exposed concrete structural frame,

BANQUE LAMBERT, BRUSSELS







BANQUE LAMBERT, BRUSSELS

6 (facing page), corner of the building from the forecourt between it and the Avenue Marnix. On the left is part of

the Henry Moore sculpture seen also in 4. 7, directors’ lounge on the top floor. The mural on the right is by Fernand Legoer.

8, basement foyer to the customers’ safe-deposit. 9, typical open-planned general office. 10, public banking hall on the
ground floor: entrance from forecourt bevond the screen on left; cashiers' counter on right; waiting space in foreground.

199




200

RV R

SIS

BANQUE LAMBERT, BRUSSELS

= R SR i

Inside Baron
Lambert’s pent-
house flat: 11,
marble lined
entrance hall with
illuminated
ceiling, displaying
part of the
Baron's collection
of sculpture—
three Giacometti
figures on the
right; 12, the
dining room,
showing the view
over the roof-tops
of Brussels; 13,
the drawing
room; 14, the
library.
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